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FIVE YEARS IN FIGURES

Five Years in Figures    IFRS     FAS   
MEUR 2005 2004 2004 2003 2002 2001
Net sales 2,638.8 2,478.2 2,478.2 2,357.5 2,519.0 2,358.7
 of which outside Finland % 97.7 96.2 96.2 97.1 96.6 96.5

Exports from Finland 1,404.7 1,292.0 1,292.0 1,240.6 1,363.7 1,153.7
Personnel  on  average 12,049 12,361 12,361 12,293 12,417 10,846
 of which in Finland 2,572 3,246 3,246 3,463 3.510 3,511

Order book. Power Businesses 2,905.7 1,855.3 1,855.3 1,245.0 1,206.6 1,516.5

From the income statement
Depreciation and write-downs 71.6 63.0 85.5 156.0 105.4 126.0
Operating result 224.3 112.0 239.8 -18.4 188.9 523.9
 as a percentage of net sales % 8.5 4.5 9.7 -0.8 7.5 22.2

Net fi nancial items -23.4 -3.7 -3.3 -15.9 -18.5 -15.2
 as a percentage of net sales % -0.9 -0.2 -0.1 -0.7 -0.7 -0.6

Net income from investments available for sale 0.5 107.7
Share of profi ts/losses in associated companies 10.9 1.4 1.4 0.0 0.4 0.1
Profi t before extraordinary items 212.4 217.3 236.5 -34.4 170.4 508.7
 as a percentage of net sales % 8.0 8.8 9.5 -1.5 6.8 21.6

Profi t before taxes 212.4 217.3 236.5 -34.4 170.4 502.7
 as a percentage of net sales % 8.0 8.8 9.5 -1.5 6.8 21.3

Profi t for the fi nancial year 167.0 130.0 160.3 -39.3 121.9 305.7
 as a percentage of net sales % 6.3 5.2 6.5 -1.7 4.8 13.0

From the balance sheet
Non-current assets 1,315.8 964.0 878.3 961.9 1,085.4 799.3
Current assets 1,552.8 1,433.3 1,448.4 1,421.0 1,599.6 1,605.6
Shareholders’ equity 1,153.1 892.7 853.0 804.6 953.0 1,071.6
Minority interests 9.8 7.8 7.8 6.1 6.5 6.4
Interest-bearing liabilities 403.6 320.0 319.5 496.8 624.3 168.3
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 1,302.0 1,176.8 1,146.4 1,075.4 1,101.2 1,158.7
Balance sheet total 2,868.6 2,397.3 2,326.7 2,382.9 2,685.0 2,405.0
Gross capital expenditure 231.1 69.2 64.8 65.4 423.3 97.1
 as a percentage of net sales % 8.8 2.8 2.6 2.8 16.8 4.1

Research and development expenses3 70.1 73.4 59.4 70.2 87.6 81.4
 as a percentage of net sales % 2.7 3.0 2.4 3.0 3.5 3.5

Dividends paid for the fi nancial year1  84.7 41.6 41.6 44.7 14.9 29.7
 Supplementary dividend 56.5 41.6 41.6 61.7 89.2 208.1

Dividends total 141.2 83.3 83.3 106.4 104.1 237.8

Financial ratios
Earnings per share (EPS) EUR 1.80 1.42 1.75 -0.44 1.37 3.69
Diluted EPS EUR 1.78
Dividend per share EUR 1.501 0.90 0.90 1.17 1.17 2.67
Payout ratio % 83.31 64.1 51.4 n/a 85.4 72.3
Interest coverage2 8.3 17.2 20.1 4.4 7.8 12.6
Return on investment (ROI) % 18.0 18.0 20.4 0.1 14.9 43.0
Return on equity (ROE) % 16.3 15.0 19.7 -4.5 12.4 33.7
Solvency ratio 12 % 46.6 40.8 40.3 35.0 36.9 47.3
Solvency ratio 2 % 46.6 40.8 40.3 36.2 38.0 48.6
Gearing 12 0.24 0.17 0.18 0.48 0.50 0.01
Gearing 2 0.24 0.17 0.18 0.43 0.46 -0.02
Equity per share EUR 12.25 9.65 9.22 8.69 10.37 11.70

1Proposal of the Board of Directors. Financial ratios calculated from total amount of dividend.
2Please refer to the Calculation of Financial Ratios on page 4.
3Accounting principles for R&D expenses changed in 2004.

WÄRTSILÄ 2005     3



4     WÄRTSILÄ 2005

CALCULATION OF FINANCIAL RATIOS

Return on investment (ROI) 
Profi t before extraordinary items + interest and other fi nancial expenses x 100
Balance sheet total – non-interest-bearing liabilities – provisions, average over the year 

Return on equity (ROE)
Profi t before extraordinary items – taxes for the fi nancial year x 100
Shareholders’ equity + minority interests, average over the year

Interest coverage 
Profi t before extraordinary items + depreciation + interest and other fi nancial expenses
Interest and other fi nancial expenses

Solvency ratio 
Shareholders’ equity + minority interests x 100
Balance sheet total – advances received

Gearing  
Interest-bearing liabilities – cash and bank balances
Shareholders’ equity + minority interests 

Earnings per share (EPS)
Profi t before extraordinary items – income taxes – minority interests
Adjusted number of shares over the fi nancial year

Equity per share
Shareholders’ equity
Adjusted number of shares at the end of the fi nancial year

Dividend per share
Dividends paid for the fi nancial year
Adjusted number of shares at the end of the fi nancial year

Payout ratio
Dividend per share x 100
Earnings per share (EPS)

Effective dividend yield
Dividend per share x 100
Adjusted share price at the end of the fi nancial year

Price/earnings (P/E)
Adjusted share price at the end of the fi nancial year
Earnings per share (EPS)

Price/book value per share (P/BV)
Adjusted share price at the end of the fi nancial year
Equity per share
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REVIEW BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2005

Highlights of 2005
Strong growth in the world economy is 
being refl ected in an increasing need for 
commercial seaborne transport in Wärt-
silä’s core markets. Th is factor explains 
the lively demand for new marine vessels 
in recent years and the high order books 
reported by shipyards. Strong growth is 
also boosting the need for electricity, 
especially in developing countries. Oil 
price rises favour high-effi  ciency prod-
ucts in particular and Wärtsilä has ben-
efi ted from the buoyant business con-
ditions through its competitive prod-
uct portfolio, which is also evidenced 
by growth in its market shares. In 2005 
Wärtsilä received a record number of 
new orders and its year-end order book 
reached a record high as well.

Th e Group’s operating income rose 
to EUR 224.3 million (112.0). Th e 
Power Businesses reported the best re-
sult so far in their history, EUR 202.5 
million (87.7), and profi tability at 8.0% 
met the targets.

Th e company continued to pursue 
its strategy of Ship Power and Service 
development through acquisitions and 
by strengthening its position in Asia. 
In its Power Plants business Wärtsilä’s 
strategy to concentrate on solutions 
for the decentralized power generation 
market has yielded results and success 
was especially pronounced in the gas 
power plant sector.

Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Wärtsilä adopted IFRS reporting stand-
ards on 1 January 2005. Th e compari-
son fi gures for 2004 have been adjust-
ed accordingly. Th e fi gures for the years 
2001 – 2003 in the Five Years in Fig-
ures table on page 3 are calculated ac-
cording to Finnish accounting stand-
ards (FAS). Th e impacts of IFRS on the 
balance sheet and income statement are 
described in Wärtsilä’s stock exchange 
release dated 18 March 2005, which 
is available on the company’s website, 
www.wartsila.com and in the notes of 
the Financial Statements no 33. IAS 39 
(Financial Instruments) has been ap-
plied since 1 January 2005. Its impact 
at 1 January 2005 on shareholders’ eq-
uity was EUR +42.7 million from de-
rivative fi nancial instruments and EUR 
+141.5 million from assets available for 
sale. Th e impact at 31 December 2005 
was EUR -10.1 million from derivative 
fi nancial instruments and EUR +157.1 
million from assets available for sale.

Group structure
Th e process of developing Wärtsilä from 
a group with diversifi ed industrial inter-
ests into a unifi ed corporation supply-
ing power solutions was concluded in 
spring 2005. At the beginning of May 
the Group’s steel business, Imatra Steel, 
became part of a new steel company 
called Oy Ovako Ab. Hence Wärtsilä 

Group today comprises its three Pow-
er Businesses: Ship Power, Service and 
Power Plants. Ovako, in which Wärt-
silä’s holding is 26.5%, is consolidated 
as an associated company from 1 May 
2005. Imatra Steel is consolidated as a 
subsidiary in Wärtsilä’s fi nancial state-
ments for the fi rst four months of the 
year.

Strategy – actions to support 
growth targets 
Wärtsilä provides lifecycle power solu-
tions to enhance the business of its cus-
tomers, whilst creating better technolo-
gies that benefi t both the customer and 
the environment. Wärtsilä’s vision is to 
be the most valued business partner of 
all its customers.

Wärtsilä wants to maintain its lead-
ing position in the ship power busi-
ness and to grow further by providing 
its customers with the best lifetime eco-
nomic performance and reliability in 
the market through an integrated of-
fering that meets their business needs 
throughout the world.

Th e company will also grow by add-
ing new products and services to its of-
fering, especially in the fi elds of auto-
mation, electronics and ship design. 
Th e aim is to grow both organically and 
through partnerships and acquisitions.

In the service market Wärtsilä also 
provides service for other makes of equip-
ment on board vessels as well as compre-
hensive ship service in key ports.

Net sales
MEUR 2005 2004 Change %
Ship Power 710.3 631.2 12.5
Power Plants 710.3 651.9 9.0
Service 1,093.1 936.8 16.7 
Imatra Steel 119.01 254.4 -53.2 
Other operations and intra-group sales 6.2 3.9 56.6 
Group 2,638.8 2,478.2 6.5 

Development of net sales

EUR billion
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In the growing Asian shipbuilding 
market Wärtsilä has strengthened its 
presence in sourcing, manufacturing 
and lifetime customer support, and this 
work will continue. Wärtsilä is forging 
partnerships in both its existing busi-
nesses and in new growth areas.

In Power Plants, Wärtsilä’s stra-
tegic goal is to further strengthen its 
global position in the decentralized en-
ergy market. Wärtsilä off ers power gen-
eration solutions based on oil, gas and 
dual-fuel reciprocating engines, and on 
biomass-fuelled plants. Th e company’s 
competitive advantage is the high effi  -
ciency of its power plants coupled with 
operational fl exibility, which gives cus-
tomers a better return on their invest-
ment also in times of increasing or vol-
atile fuel prices.

Th e expected growth in gas power 
plants has started in the industrial coun-
tries. Wärtsilä gas and dual-fuel power 
plants have proven competitive and for 
this reason the subject of increasing in-
terest. In heavy fuel oil plants, Wärtsilä 
is focusing on clearly defi ned segments 
that off er the greatest market potential.

Strategic measures in 2005
Wärtsilä took several steps during 2005 
to strengthen the leading positions of 
its Ship Power and Service businesses 
globally:
• Production of thrusters in China be-

gan in June; the fi rst deliveries were 
made in September. 

• Th e project to manufacture ma-
rine reduction gears in India made 
planned progress. 

• Construction work started on the 
new factory for the 50/50-owned 
joint venture set up with China 
Shipbuilding Industry Corporation 

(CSIC). Th e company will start pro-
duction of Wärtsilä diesel generating 
sets, used as auxiliary engines in ma-
rine vessels. Production is expected to 
begin in early summer 2006.

• A strategic alliance was made with Mit-
subishi Heavy Industries Ltd (MHI) 
in the fi eld of 2-stroke diesel engines. 

• Design work started on two new 
Wärtsilä RT-fl ex engines in co-op-
eration with Hyundai Heavy Indus-
tries Co. Ltd. (HHI) and these en-
gines will be tested in HHI’s produc-
tion facilities.

• Wärtsilä took a 12.5% stake in Aker 
Arctic Technology Inc., which off ers 
ship designs for shipyards, shipown-
ers and off shore operators interested 
in operations in ice-infested cold wa-
ters.

• Wärtsilä took over the DEUTZ ma-
rine engine service business from 
the German company DEUTZ AG. 
Wärtsilä began to provide service and 
OEM parts for these engines globally 
from 1 April 2005.

• To expand its Service business Wärt-
silä set up a marine service company 
in Estonia with the Estonian BLRT 
Grupp to serve the Baltic market. A 
service company was also established 
in Hong Kong. In the USA, Wärt-
silä acquired in November a compa-
ny specialized in the service of auto-
mation and control systems for diesel 
and gas engines. 

Financial targets
Th e Group’s average annual growth tar-
get for net sales is 6 – 7%. Th e annual 
growth target for the Ship Power and 
Power Plants businesses is 4% and for 
the Service business 10 – 15%. Wärtsilä’s 
operating income (EBITA) target is 8% 

of net sales, taking into account business 
cycle fl uctuations. 

Order book historical high
A record number of new orders were re-
ceived during the year. Th e order intake 
totalled EUR 3,491.1 million (2,791.4), 
representing growth of 25.1%. Most 
new orders were registered in the Ship 
Power business, where the order intake 
was 84.7% higher than one year earlier. 
Th e full-year order intake for the Power 
Plants business decreased by 15.1% but 
began to rise clearly during the second 
half of the year. Th e order intake lev-
el for Power Plants in the previous year 
can be considered exceptionally high 
owing to a large one-off  order.

Wärtsilä’s total order book at the 
end of 2005 reached an all-time high, 
EUR 2,905.7 million (1,855.3), up 
56.6% on the previous year. 

Net sales increased
Wärtsilä’s consolidated net sales in-
creased to EUR 2,638.8 million 
(2,478.2). Net sales of the Power Busi-
nesses rose to EUR 2,520.3 million 
(2,224.7), an increase of 13.3% on 
the year before. Th is increase was due 
in particular to the large number of or-
ders for marine engines and propulsion 
systems at the year end and to strong 
growth in the Service business. 

Imatra Steel’s net sales of EUR 
119.0 million was consolidated for the 
fi rst four months of the year (254.4).

Result improved, profi tability target 
achieved 
Th e Group’s operating income im-
proved to EUR 224.3 million (112.0). 
Operating income in the previous year 
was depressed by a EUR 66.0 million re-

Operating income
MEUR EBIT% ROI%

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Power Businesses 202.5 87.7 8.0 3.9 18.9 7.5
Imatra Steel 21.81 24.3 18.3 9.5 46.0 7.7
Group 224.3 112.0 8.5 4.5 18.0 18.0

1 Four months.
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REVIEW BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 2005

structuring provision which, in compli-
ance with IFRS, was entered in the fi rst 
quarter of 2004 rather than in 2003. 
Th e Group’s profi tability (EBITA) was 
8.5% (4.5). 

Th e Power Businesses contributed 
EUR 202.5 million (87.7) to consol-
idated operating income. Th e profi ta-
bility (EBITA) of the Power Businesses 
rose, as targeted, to 8.0% (3.9).

Consolidated operating income in-
cludes Imatra Steel’s operating income 
for the fi rst four months of the year, 
EUR 21.8 million. Wärtsilä’s share of 
the associated company Oy Ovako Ab’s 
result for the months May to December 
(EUR 10.4 million) is shown below op-
erating income and under ‘Share of as-
sociated companies’ results’. Oy Ovako 
Ab’s result was burdened by a EUR 25 
million restructuring provision.

Financial items amounted to EUR 
-23.4 million (-3.7). Net interest to-
talled EUR -11.9 million (-9.5), the 
higher fi gure being attributable to a 
slight increase in loan capital and inter-
est rates. Other fi nancial expenses in-
creased because of interest rate diff er-
ences on derivatives, EUR -9.4 mil-
lion (0.5), most of which related to the 
interest rate diff erence on foreign ex-
change forward contracts denominat-
ed in US dollars, which rose during the 
year. Moreover, the change in market 
value of foreign currency options and 

interest rate derivatives, EUR -3.8 mil-
lion (0) was entered in the income state-
ment because the hedge is not eff ective 
according to IAS 39. Financial items in-
clude dividends totalling EUR 7.2 mil-
lion (8.8), the largest of which were div-
idends paid by Sampo Oyj and Assa Ab-
loy AB (publ). 

Income before taxes was EUR 212.4 
million (217.3 ). Pretax income in the 
comparison year included a EUR 107.7 
million capital gain on the disposal of 
Assa Abloy shares.

Taxes amounted to EUR 44.0 mil-
lion (86.1), and EUR 42.4 million 
(63.1) of this amount fell due during 
the reporting period.

Net income was EUR 168.4 million 
(131.3).

Earnings per share improved to 
EUR 1.80 (1.42). Return on invest-
ment (ROI) was 18.0% (18.0) and re-
turn on shareholders’ equity (ROE) was 
16.3% (15.0).

Financial position good
Wärtsilä’s cash fl ow from operating ac-
tivities was EUR 76.0 million (220.1). 
Th e fi nancial position was good.

Working capital was tied up in de-
liveries in progress during the fi rst half 
of the year due to an increase in busi-
ness volumes and also to the growing 
DEUTZ business. Furthermore cash 
payments were made during the period 
against the restructuring provisions. 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 
of the year amounted to EUR 119.6 
million (169.6). Net interest-bearing 
loan capital was EUR 255.9 million 
(141.6). Th e solvency ratio was 46.6% 
(40.8) and gearing was 0.24 (0.17).

Capital expenditure
Gross capital expenditure for the re-
porting period totalled EUR 231.1 
million (69.2), which comprised EUR 
152.2 million (7.9) spent on acquisi-
tions and EUR 79.0 million (61.3) in 
production and information technolo-
gy investments. EUR 23.2 million was 
related to the Ovako transaction. De-
preciation amounted to EUR -71.6 
million (-63.0).

Th e largest single investment was 
the acquisition on 31 March 2005 of 
the marine engine service business from 
DEUTZ AG. Th e investment value of 
this acquisition, including costs, was 
EUR 115.6 million which included in-
ventories amounting to EUR 8 million. 
Th e remainder was allocated to intan-
gible assets. Th e business was consoli-
dated in the balance sheet on 31 March 
2005.

Research and development costs 
totalled EUR 70.0 million (73.4), or 
2.7% (3.0) of net sales.

Holdings
Wärtsilä owns 17,270,350 B shares in 
Assa Abloy AB (publ), or 4.7% of the 
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total. Th e market value of the Assa Ab-
loy B share on 31 December 2005 was 
125 Swedish krona. Th is holding has 
been booked in the balance sheet at its 
market value at the end of the reporting 
period, EUR 229.9 million.

Th e new steel company Oy Ova-
ko Ab was formed on 1 May 2005 and 
Wärtsilä’s holding is 26.5%. Th e bal-
ance sheet value of this holding at the 
close of the period was EUR 106.1 mil-
lion. Furthermore Wärtsilä has granted 
a shareholder’s loan of EUR 21.2 mil-
lion to Ovako. Wärtsilä has recorded 
EUR 10.4 million as its share of this as-
sociated company’s result for the peri-
od 5–12/2005. Ovako’s result was bur-
dened by a EUR 25 million restructur-
ing provision.

Wärtsilä sold investment properties 
and shares in property companies total-
ling EUR 19.3 million (14.7) during 
2005, generating a profi t of EUR 8.7 
million (9.8). At the end of the year the 
investment properties had a total book 
value of EUR 17.2 million (14.2).

Personnel
Wärtsilä Group had 12,049 (12,361) 
employees on average during the year 
and 12,008 (12,475) at the year end. 
Th e largest personnel increases took 
place in the Service business. Th e 
DEUTZ agreement added 170 serv-
ice employees. Due to the termination 
of production, the number of employ-
ees in Turku, Finland, decreased by 359 
during the fi rst quarter. Th e number of 

employees in Vaasa, Finland, increased 
by 198 persons during the year. Imat-
ra Steel’s transfer to Ovako reduced the 
number of employees in the Group by 
1,279 persons.

Sustainable development
Wärtsilä will publish its Sustainabili-
ty Report as part of its Annual Report. 
Th e Sustainability Report describes the 
work done by the company to improve 
the environmental performance of its 
products and reduce the environmental 
impacts of its production operations.

Option schemes
Wärtsilä’s option schemes covering key 
employees of the Group were launched 
in 2001 and 2002. On 3 February 2005 
Wärtsilä’s Board of Directors decided to 
include the 2001 options in the book-
entry securities system. Th ese options 
were admitted for trading on the Main 
List of the Helsinki Exchanges on 7 
March 2005. Th e 2002 options have 
been listed on the Helsinki Exchanges 
since 2004.

 Th e decision of the Annual Gener-
al Meeting to pay an extra dividend of 
0.45 euros per share reduced the sub-
scription price of the B share under 
Wärtsilä’s 2001 and 2002 stock option 
schemes by the amount of extra divi-
dend, as stipulated in the terms and 
conditions of these schemes. Hence 
the subscription price of shares based 
on the 2001 options is 16.70 euros per 
share and based on the 2002 options 
9.50 euros per share.

Changes in ownership structure
On 14 June 2005 Fiskars Corporation 
announced that it had sold four mil-
lion Wärtsilä B shares. Before this sale, 
Fiskars held 7,482,300 Wärtsilä A shares 
and 11,165,800 Wärtsilä B shares, 
which represented 28.2% of the vot-
ing power in Wärtsilä and 20.1% of the 
total number of shares. After the sale, 
Fiskars’ holding decreased to 26.9% of 
the votes and 15.8% of the shares. In 
December Fiskars increased its holding 
of Wärtsilä A shares so that at the end of 
the year Fiskars held 8,561,676 Wärt-
silä A shares and 7,165,800 B shares, 
representing 30.6% of the votes and 
16.8% of the shares. 

Annual General Meeting 
Th e Annual General Meeting on 21 
March 2005 approved the Board of Di-
rectors’ proposal to distribute a divi-
dend of EUR 0.45 per share and an ex-
tra dividend of EUR 0.45 per share, 
making a total dividend of EUR 0.90 
per share.

Th e AGM confi rmed the number of 
Board members to be seven and elect-
ed the following to the Board: Heik-
ki Allonen, Göran J. Ehrnrooth, Risto 
Hautamäki, Jaakko Iloniemi, Antti La-
gerroos, Bertel Langenskiöld and Mat-
ti Vuoria. Th e AGM appointed the fi rm 
of authorized public accountants KP-
MG Oy Ab as the company’s auditors.

Gross capital expenditure
MEUR 2005 2004
Investments in securities
Power Businesses 152.2 7.9
Other investments
Power Businesses 75.6 55.5
Imatra Steel 3.4 5.8
Total 79.0 61.3
Group 231.1 69.2
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Board of Directors
Th e Board elected Antti Lagerroos as 
its chairman and Göran J. Ehrnrooth 
as the deputy chairman. Th e Board has 
an Audit Committee and a Nomination 
and Compensation Committee. Th e 
chairman of the Audit Committee is 
Antti Lagerroos and its other members 
are Heikki Allonen, Risto Hautamäki 
and Matti Vuoria. Th e chairman of the 
Nomination and Compensation Com-
mittee is Antti Lagerroos and its other 
members are Göran J. Ehrnrooth and 
Jaakko Iloniemi.

Share capital and shares
A total of 1,556,499 Wärtsilä B shares 
were subscribed during the period un-

der the 2001 and 2002 option schemes. 
Th is increased the share capital by 
EUR 5,447,746.50 following which 
the share capital amounts to EUR 
329,374,906.00.

Th e AGM on 21 March 2005 au-
thorized the Board for one year to 
repurchase and dispose of the compa-
ny’s own Series A and B shares in pro-
portion to the total number of shares in 
each series provided that the total nom-
inal value of the shares so purchased, 
and the votes carried by these shares, 
shall not exceed fi ve per cent (5%) of 
the company’s total share capital and 
voting rights. Th is authorization was 
not exercised during the reporting pe-
riod.

Trading on the Helsinki Stock Exchanges 1–12/2005 2004
Trading in Helsinki, shares 88.0% 51.5%
Trading in Helsinki, votes 36.3% 21.9%
Trading on the SEAQ, votes 12.0% 7.9%
Foreign ownership at year end 24.1% 15.7%

Shares at 31 December 2005 A share B share Total
Number of shares 23,579,587 70,527,529 94,107,116
Number of votes 235,795,870 70,527,529 306,323,399

Highest Lowest Average1 Total
Wärtsilä share on the Helsinki Stock Exchanges EUR EUR EUR traded
1 January – 31 December 2005
A share 26.70 15.31 22.73 3,160,625
B share 27.09 15.68 22.46 79,635,755
1Trade weighted average price.

Market capitalization 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004
MEUR 2,348.9 1,440.8

BUSINESS REVIEW

Power Businesses

SHIP POWER

High level of demand
Th e boom in the shipbuilding industry 
continued during 2005. Even more or-
ders for new-buildings were placed dur-
ing the fi rst half of the year than in the 
same period in the two previous years. 
Although the volume of orders for new 
tonnage declined towards the end of the 
year, the number of orders for the full 
year was still at a good level; altogether 
1,850 (2,012) new vessels were ordered 
during the year. Th e market trend to-
wards smaller vessels favours Wärtsilä. 

Gearing 

• Gearing 1

• Gearing 2
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Th e decrease in order volume ap-
plied mainly to tankers and bulk car-
riers. In orders for containerships the 
trend was from large to smaller vessels. 
Th e off shore sector gained considerably 
more orders than one year earlier. Th e 
passenger and RoPax sectors enjoyed an 
active season. A total of 11 new cruise 
ships were ordered in 2005 maintaining 
a good level of orders.

Asia has for several years been the 
hub of the world’s shipbuilding indus-
try. In 2005 China overtook Japan in 
vessel order contracting. In terms of the 
number of orders, China is very close to 
Korea, which is still clearly the world’s 
leading shipbuilding country for large 
vessels and the largest in terms of dead 
weight tons.

The manufacturing operations 
started by Wärtsilä in China are aimed 
at raising business volumes in Asia and 
especially in the growing shipbuilding 
market in China.

Outstanding year for Ship Power 
Wärtsilä received a record number of 
orders for ship power systems and en-
gines during the year. Orders were reg-
istered steadily throughout the year and 
the fi nal order intake was EUR 1,545.3 
million (836.7), or 84.7% higher than 
one year earlier. For the same reason a 
new record was recorded for the year-
end order book, EUR 1,658.5 million 
(812.7). 

Net sales rose to EUR 710.3 million 
(631.2), an increase of 12.5%. Th e high 

order intake of the past 18 months was 
not yet refl ected in net sales for 2005 
but it will have an impact in the follow-
ing three years. Net sales grew strongly 
in the fourth quarter, 31.4%, due to the 
timing of large deliveries at the end of 
the year. In output terms, Wärtsilä de-
livered medium-speed engines totalling 
1,760 MW (1,474). Th e licensees de-
livered another 3,577 MW (3,053) in 
low-speed engines.

Wärtsilä was successful in a number 
of sectors during 2005. Growth contin-
ued in LNG carriers and Wärtsilä’s du-
al-fuel engines became established as a 
noteworthy alternative in this fi eld. Th e 
most signifi cant orders of the year in-
cluded the order for 24 Wärtsilä 50DF 
engines placed by AP Möller and Kawa-
saki Kisen Kaisha at the end of March.

The offshore sector was active 
throughout the year and Wärtsilä gained 
several signifi cant orders for both drill-
ing platforms and support vessels. In 
many off shore projects, as in other seg-
ments as well, Wärtsilä also supplies 
the entire propulsion system in addi-
tion to the main engines. Sales of to-
tal ship power systems grew strongly in 
2005 and more than half of all projects 
sold included several components from 
Wärtsilä’s product portfolio. A good ex-
ample is the order for 32 engines and 16 
thrusters for oil drilling platforms being 
built by Singaporean Keppel FELS Ltd 
for the Danish company AP Möller-
Maersk A/S.

Th e RT-fl ex 50 engine, jointly de-
veloped by Wärtsilä and Mitsubishi, 

continued its breakthrough as a main 
engine for bulk carriers and tankers as 
new orders were received and also the 
fi rst deliveries made. Th e two parties are 
continuing this fruitful collaboration in 
a strategic alliance.

Annual capacity was doubled in the 
joint venture propeller factory in Chi-
na from 1,000 tonnes to 2,000 tonnes 
and the maximum size of the propel-
lers manufactured was increased at the 
same time.

Construction of the new thruster 
factory in Wuxi, China, was completed, 
and production got under way. Th e ma-
chinery and equipment of the thrust-
er factory in Heerlen, the Netherlands, 
was sold and its employees moved to 
a new company in December. A new 
production unit for mid-sized reduc-
tion gears was established at Wärtsilä’s 
Khopoli factory in India. 

Th e propulsion business showed 
further strong development. Wärt-
silä has traditionally held a strong posi-
tion in controllable pitch propellers. In 
2005 demand shifted to smaller propel-
lers and for this reason Wärtsilä’s mar-
ket share declined to 40% (50). In fi xed 
pitch propellers, Wärtsilä consolidated 
its position thanks to the start-up of pro-
duction in China, despite a marginal de-
crease in market share from 9% to 6%.

2005 was also a successful year for 
Wärtsilä’s seals business. Th e company 
brought several new products to mar-
ket and succeeded in raising its market 
share especially in face seals systems.

Interest-bearing loan capital
MEUR 2005 2004
Long-term liabilities 229.4 271.2
Current liabilities 174.2 48.8
Loan receivables -28.1 -8.9
Cash and bank balances -119.6 -169.6
Net 255.9 141.6

R&D expenditure
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Higher market share for engines
Market trends in both low-speed and 
medium-speed engines favoured Wärt-
silä during 2005. Th e company’s prod-
uct and solutions portfolio was well 
suited to demand and market shares in-
creased.

According to Wärtsilä’s statistics, 
the total market for low-speed engines 
amounted to 22,703 MW (24,863). 
In this sector Wärtsilä raised its mar-
ket share to 24% (18). Th e shares of 
the other two suppliers in this segment 
were 73% and 3%.

Th e market for medium-speed en-
gines totalled 6,676 MW (3,990). In 
this segment Wärtsilä is the market 
leader, its share rising to 45% (34). 
Th e largest competitor accounted for 
24% of the market and the second larg-
est for 18%. Th e total size of the mar-
ket for medium-speed auxiliary engines 
grew to 5,220 MW (3,544) and Wärt-
silä’s share remained almost unchanged 
at 8% (9).

SERVICE

Strong growth continued
Net sales of the Service business rose 
to EUR 1,093.1 million (936.8), up 
16.7% on the previous year. Th e pace 
of growth accelerated during the fourth 
quarter to 24.3% compared to the same 
period one year earlier due to sales of 
spare parts, 2-stroke engine service, gas 
conversion projects for many engines, 
and strong development in the Ciserv 
group.

Wärtsilä took over worldwide spare 
parts sales and service for DEUTZ me-
dium-speed marine engines after ac-
quiring the installed base of these en-
gines (12,500 MW) from the German 
company DEUTZ AG. Following this 
deal Wärtsilä’s base of installed engines 
totalled almost 150 GW.

Wärtsilä signed its fi rst global op-
erations & maintenance agreement in 
the maritime industry during the year. 
Th e customer was the German ship-
owner Reederei Blue Star GmbH. Th e 
agreement covers a substantial part of 
the maintenance and operational sup-
port needed for the company’s ocean-
going vessels. 

Real-time remote monitoring and 
condition-based maintenance (CBM) 
is becoming a strategically important 
service tool for Wärtsilä. At present 
some 209 ship engine rooms and pow-
er plants are covered by CBM services. 

Th e volume of online services more 
than tripled on the previous year.

Wärtsilä’s training unit, the Wärtsi-
lä Land & Sea Academy, opened new 
maritime training centres in the Phil-
ippines and Finland. Th e Academy also 
has a third training centre in the USA. 
Th ese centres provide training courses 
and personnel development services for 
Wärtsilä’s marine and power plant cus-
tomers. 

Wärtsilä established several new 
service companies to increase its pres-
ence in the world’s main shipping 
hubs.

POWER PLANTS

Wärtsilä’s competitiveness is based 
on high effi ciency
Th e increase in crude oil prices in 2005 
raised the price of electricity generated 
using fuel oils and, after a certain delay, 
the price of electricity produced with 
natural gas. At the same time, though, 
this trend improved the competitiveness 
of heavy fuel oil and gas power plants 
compared to light fuel oil plants. Crude 
oil prices are expected to stay high.

Demand will remain steady in the 
heavy fuel oil market largely dominated 
by Wärtsilä – islands and remote areas 
mainly in the developing world. Elec-
tricity consumption growth rates are 
typically fairly high in these regions, and 
there is a continuous need for addition-
al production capacity. Th e excellent ef-
fi ciency of Wärtsilä’s products gives the 
company a strengthening competitive 
edge while oil prices are high. 

Th e oil and gas industry is investing 
increasingly in LNG vessels and termi-
nals and in gas pipelines. Consequently, 
power plant demand also in developing 
countries is gradually, region by region, 
turning towards gas. Th is off ers Wärt-
silä the opportunity to increase its cur-
rent business volume and market share 
in this traditional core market.

Market size and market shares
In 2005 the total global market for oil 
and gas power plants in Wärtsilä’s power 
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range was in the order of 10,300 MW. 
In these markets Wärtsilä focuses on gas 
and heavy fuel oil power plants. 

In 2005 the global gas power plant 
market grew by 13% to 7,600 MW. 
Orders for heavy fuel oil power plants 
returned to an average level of 1,921 
MW after the record high year in 2004 
(2,533 MW). 

According to statistics compiled 
by Diesel and Gas Turbine magazine, 
Wärtsilä’s market share of heavy fuel 
oil plants between June 2004 and May 
2005 was 44% (71%). Wärtsilä’s mar-
ket share in the previous year was ex-
ceptionally large owing to orders placed 
in Iraq. Th e market for gas engine pow-
er plants increased from roughly 2,000 
MW to 3,000 MW during the same 
period. Wärtsilä’s share in this segment 
was 19.8% (19.3).

Strong penetration in gas power 
plant market 
Th e order intake for power plants was 
high throughout 2005 and particularly 
good during the second half of the year. 
New orders totalled EUR 865.2 million 
(1,019.5). Th e lower fi gure compared to 
2004 is attributable to two exceptional-
ly large orders. During the fourth quar-
ter the order intake rose to EUR 346.6 
million (211.7), representing growth of 
63.7% on the comparison period. 

Th e year-end order book stood at 
EUR 943.9 million (752.4), an all-time 
high and 25.5% higher than at the end 
of 2004. 

Net sales of the Power Plants busi-
ness increased 9.0% to EUR 710.3 mil-
lion (651.9). Net sales accrued dur-
ing the year more evenly than at any 
time in the past. Fourth-quarter net 
sales amounted to EUR 193.7 million 
(283.0), which was 31.6% less than one 
year earlier, the diff erence being due to 
the timing of project deliveries. 

In terms of power output, Wärt-
silä supplied power plants totalling 
1,607 MW (1,363) in 2005. Th is fi g-
ure includes 973 MW of oil-fi red pow-
er plants (1,005) and 634 MW (358) 
of gas power plants. Gas power plants 
accounted for 40% of the new power 
plant orders. 

Th e largest orders for heavy fuel oil 
power plants were gained in Brazil, Sau-
di-Arabia and Senegal. A bio-oil pow-
er plant order was gained in Italy.ö Th e 
most signifi cant gas power plant orders 
came from Azerbaijan, India and Paki-
stan, and the most important orders for 
biopower plants were placed in Sweden 
and Belgium.

Th e Azerbaijan order comprises fi ve 
gas power plants. Th e fi rst gas power 
plant with W50DF dual-fuel engines 
was delivered to Turkey with good re-
sults. 

Engine manufacturing
Th e transfer of engine manufacturing 
from Turku to Trieste was completed 
in 2005. Manufacturing of 4-stroke en-
gines is now concentrated in two fac-

tories: one in Vaasa, Finland, and the 
other in Trieste, Italy. Th is manufactur-
ing concept gives Wärtsilä considerable 
fl exibility and growth potential also in 
conditions of higher demand. Th e cur-
rent order book will ensure that the fac-
tories operate at full capacity until the 
middle of 2007.

Development programmes carried 
out in 2005 were aimed at enhancing 
quality, delivery reliability and cost-
competitiveness. A new assembly facto-
ry will be opened in Shanghai in mid-
2006 that will start producing Wärtsilä 
Auxpac generating sets for use as ma-
rine auxiliary engines.

In output terms a total of 3,367 
(2,837) 4-stroke engines manufactured 
by Wärtsilä’s own factories were deliv-
ered to customers during the year.

Research and development
Th e thrust of engine research and devel-
opment in Wärtsilä is to develop new 
engine versions and to apply common-
rail technology to both 2- and 4-stroke 
engines.

Th e R&D function was reorganized 
by combining 2-stroke and 4-stroke 
product development in the same unit. 
Th is unit has global responsibility for 
engine development as well as devel-
opment projects related to engines and 
their automation.

Th e fi rst RT-fl ex50 engine, a joint 
development project with Mitsubi-
shi Heavy Industries, was started up in 

Megawatts delivered
2005 2004 Change %

Power Plant engines 1,607 1,363 17.9
Ship Power, own engines 1,760 1,474 19.4
Wärtsilä total 3,367 2,837 18.7
By licensees 3,577 3,053 17.2
BioPower, thermal energy 117 121 -3.3
Engines deliveries total 7,061 6,011 17.5
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June and taken into operation in De-
cember. Further development of the 
RT-fl ex96C focused on effi  ciency im-
provements and lower emissions. De-
velopment of the new RTA/RT-fl ex82 
engine was started with Hyundai Heavy 
Industries, the aim being to start up the 
fi rst such engine at the end of 2007. Th e 
Wärtsilä 46F engine series was further 
developed as well, to make this engine 
suitable for a wider range of market ap-
plications.

A research and development pro-
gramme was begun in June with several 
Finnish universities and research insti-
tutes. Its aim is to develop a next-gen-
eration engine with higher effi  ciency, 
lower emissions, a lighter structure and 
lower manufacturing costs. Wärtsilä’s 
continuing goal is to develop environ-
mentally sound technology that meets 
its customers’ needs.

Th e propulsion business is concen-
trating on raising propeller effi  ciency 
especially in the case of smaller fi xed 
pitch propellers. Development started 
on a new series of compact, high-effi  -
ciency waterjets as well as a new water-
lubricated seal.

Events after the period
On February 2, Wärtsilä acquired Aker 
Kvaerner Power and Automation Sys-
tems AS (AKPAS) from Aker Kvaern-
er. AKPAS supplies power and auto-
mation systems for the oil and gas, ma-
rine and industrial markets. Th e com-
pany operates mainly in the North Sea 
region with major oil and gas compa-
nies and Norwegian shipyards. AKPAS 
has annual net sales of EUR 28 million 
and 135 employees in Stord, Norway. 
Th e acquisition price is approximately 
EUR 12 million. Th e acquisition sup-
ports Wärtsilä’s growth strategy.

Board’s proposals to the AGM 2006
Th e Board of Directors proposes to the 
Annual General Meeting on 15 March 
2006 that a dividend of 0.90 euros per 
share and an extra dividend of 0.60 eu-
ros per share, making a total dividend 
of 1.50 euros per share be distributed 
on the fi nancial year ended 31 Decem-
ber 2005. 

Th e Board also proposes that the 
AGM authorize the Board for one year 
to repurchase and dispose of the com-
pany’s own Series A and B shares in pro-
portion to the total number of shares in 
each series provided that the total nom-
inal value of the shares so purchased, 
and the votes carried by these shares, 
shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) 
of the company’s total share capital 
and voting rights. Th e company’s own 
shares may only be purchased using dis-
tributable funds. 

Market outlook in 2006
Demand has remained strong in sev-
eral segments of the shipbuilding in-
dustry. Weaker development in certain 
areas has been balanced by growth in 
others, notably the off shore sector and 
the cruise ships market. Nonetheless, 
it is clear that uncertainty among deci-
sion-makers has increased and there is 
sensitivity to all signals. In the autumn 
the volume of commercial seaborne 
transport started to decline from its all-
time high which, coupled with an in-
crease in interest rates, is aff ecting order 
activity. A partial recovery in transport 
volumes as the year drew to a close re-
stored investment levels but higher in-
terest rates, the availability of shipyard 
capacity and the availability of certain 
components are still the stronger fac-
tors weakening demand for marine ves-
sels. Most shipyards are currently taking 
orders for delivery in 2009 or beyond.

Based on the insuffi  ciency of ship-
yard capacity, component availability 
and feedback from customers, Wärtsilä 
estimates that the volume of new-build-
ing orders will decrease in 2006. Th is 
will aff ect demand for engines and pro-
pulsion equipment after a delay of a few 
months. Although the total number of 
orders for ships will decline, the mar-
ket contains active segments and the 
number of orders in 2006 will remain 
above the longer-term average. Th e ac-
tive segments are off shore, LNG and 
cruise ships, a trend that favours Wärt-
silä’s product portfolio.

Th e availability of certain core com-
ponents such as crankshafts is length-

ening delivery times throughout the in-
dustry. At the moment Wärtsilä is con-
centrating on deliveries scheduled for 
2007 and 2008.

Th e power plant market contin-
ues to be active. In geographical terms 
demand is still distributed evenly. De-
mand for gas power plants is grow-
ing further. Demand for heavy fuel oil 
plants will remain high in areas where 
gas is not available. With the price of 
oil still high, decisions are focused most 
of all on the unit costs of generating 
electricity and therefore on effi  ciency 
in particular. Reciprocating piston en-
gines off er the best effi  ciency and for 
this reason they are also viewed with fa-
vour in the market.

Service will continue to grow strong-
ly through new products and acquisi-
tions. Wärtsilä off ers a diverse range of 
services, tailored solutions and compre-
hensive training capabilities through its 
global service network.

Wärtsilä’s prospects in 2006
Demand in the ship power and energy 
markets looks likely to remain favoura-
ble for Wärtsilä for at least the fi rst half 
of the current year. Based on the strong 
order book, Wärtsilä’s net sales are ex-
pected to grow this year by as much as 
20%. Th e profi tability level reached in 
2005 will remain. Net sales is expected 
to show further growth in 2007.

6 February 2006

Wärtsilä Corporation
Board of Directors
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Group Income Statement
MEUR Note 2005 % 2004 %

Net sales 1,3 2,638.8 100.0 2,478.2 100.0

Change in inventories of fi nished goods & work in progress 28.2 -21.6
Work performed by the Group and capitalized 0.1 5.2
Other income 4 26.8 26.9

Material and services 5 -1,522.5 -1,440.5

Employee benefi t expenses 6 -540.0 -554.4
Depreciation 7 -71.6 -74.3
Impairment 7 11.3
Other expenses -335.5 -318.8

Operating result 224.3 8.5 112.0 4.5

Income from fi nancial assets 7.2 8.8
Interest income and expenses 8 -11.9 -9.5
Other fi nancial income and expenses 8 -18.7 -3.0
Net income from investments available for sale 0.5 107.7
Share of profi t of associates 10.9 1.4

Profi t before taxes 212.4 217.3

Taxes for the period 9 -44.0 -86.1

Profi t for the fi nancial period 168.4 6.4 131.3 5.3

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent company 10 167.0 130.0
Minority interest 1.4 1.3

168.4 131.3

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the parent company:
Earnings per share, EUR 1.80 1.42
Diluted earnings per share, EUR 1.78 1.42
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Group Balance Sheet, Assets
MEUR Note 31 Dec. 2005 % 31 Dec. 2004 %

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 175.4 76.2
Goodwill 11 365.7 359.6
Property, plant and equipment 12 255.7 342.8
Investment properties 12 17.2 14.2
Equity in associates 13 108.5 2.8
Investments available for sale 15 284.4 68.4
Interest-bearing investments 16 27.2 6.9
Deferred tax receivables 18 77.6 82.9
Trade receivables 16 5.2
Other receivables 16 4.2 5.1

1,315.8 45.9 964.0 40.2

Current assets
Inventories 638.6 565.1
Interest-bearing receivables 16 0.9 1.9
Trade receivables 16 670.2 576.9
Income tax receivables 16.1 12.5
Other receivables 16 107.4 107.3
Cash and cash equivalents 17 119.6 169.6

1,552.8 54.1 1,433.3 59.8

Assets 2,868.6 100.0 2,397.3 100.0

Group Balance Sheet,
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
MEUR Note 31 Dec. 2005 % 31 Dec. 2004 %

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital 20 329.4 323.9
Share premium reserve 20 44.0 27.3
Translation differences 7.0 -1.0
Fair value reserve 22 146.9
Retained earnings 23 625.8 542.5
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,153.1 40.2 892.7 37.2

Minority interest 9.8 0.3 7.8 0.3
Total shareholders’ equity 1,163.0 40.5 900.5 37.6

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing debt 25 229.4 271.2
Deferred tax liabilities 18 78.8 39.2
Pension obligations 19 50.5 55.7
Provisions 24 17.0 13.4
Other liabilities 26 1.5 0.7

377.2 13.1 380.2 15.9

Current liabilities
Interest-bearing debt 25 174.2 48.8
Provisions 24 104.1 136.5
Advances received 371.4 191.8
Trade payables 238.1 243.2
Income tax liabilities 29.9 48.6
Other current liabilities 26 410.7 447.7

1,328.5 46.3 1,116.6 46.6

Total liabilities 1,705.7 59.5 1,496.8 62.4

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities 2,868.6 100.0 2,397.3 100.0
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Group Cash Flow Statement
MEUR 2005 2004

Cash fl ows from operating activities:
Profi t before taxes 212.4 217.3
Adjustments:
Depreciation 71.6 63.0
Share of profi t of associates -10.9 -1.4
Selling profi t and loss of fi xed assets -11.8 -118.3
Financial income and expenses 23.4 3.7
Other changes -1.5
Cash fl ow before changes in working capital 283.1 164.4

Changes in working capital:
Current assets, non-interest-bearing, increase (-) / decrease (+) -107.9 -9.5
Inventories, increase (-) / decrease (+) -117.1 -12.2
Current liabilities, non-interest-bearing, increase (-) / decrease (+) 105.2 98.6
Changes in working capital -119.8 76.8

Cash fl ow from operating activities before fi nancial items and taxes 163.3 241.2

Financial items and taxes:
Interest and other fi nancial expenses -47.6 -29.6
Dividends received from operating activities 0.4
Interest and other fi nancial income from operating activities 10.9 31.5
Income taxes -50.5 -23.5
Financial items and taxes -87.3 -21.1

Cash fl ow from operating activities 76.0 220.1

Cash fl ow from investing activities:
Investments in subsidiary shares -126.0 -7.5
Investments in shares -26.2 -0.5
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -79.0 -61.0
Proceeds from sale of shares -8.6 137.5
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets 51.2 12.4
Loan receivables, increase (+) / decrease (-) and other changes 3.0 3.1
Dividends received from investments 7.2 8.8
Taxes paid on sales of shares -7.8
Cash fl ow from investing activities -178.3 85.0

Cash fl ow after investing activities -102.3 305.0

Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities:
Issuance of share capital 22.1
Loans receivables, increase (-) / decrease (+) -44.7 5.1
Current loans, increase (+) / decrease (-) 183.7 -157.8
New long-term loans 53.2 30.0
Amortization and other changes to long-term loans -83.0 -47.2
Dividends paid -83.9 -106.7
Changes in convertible subordinated debentures, increase (+) / decrease (-) -2.8
Other changes 0.1 -5.5
Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities 47.6 -284.9

Change in liquid funds, increase (+) / decrease (-) -54.7 20.2

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 169.6 151.5
Exchange rate changes 4.8 -2.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 119.6 169.6
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Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

                                                                                   Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent Minority
Interest

Total
 equity

Share Trans- Fair value
Share  issue lation and other Retained

MEUR capital premium differences reserves earnings Total

Shareholders’ equity on 1 January 2004 208.8 117.9 519.5 846.1 6.1 852.2

Conversion of subordinated debentures 7.2 17.5 24.6 24.6
Translation differences -1.0 -1.0 0.4 -0.6
Other changes -0.6 -0.6 -0.6
Net income recognized directly in equity 7.2 17.5 -1.0 -0.6 23.1 0.4 23.5
Profi t for the fi nancial period 130.0 130.0 1.3 131.3
Total recognized income and expenses 
   for the period 7.2 17.5 -1.0 129.4 153.0 1.7 154.8
Bonus issue 108.0 -108.0 0.0 0.0
Dividends paid -106.4 -106.4 -106.4
Shareholders’ equity on 31 December 2004 323.9 27.3 -1.0 542.5 892.7 7.8 900.5

IAS 39 applied on 1 January 2005 184.2 184.2 184.2
Translation differences 8.0 8.0 1.2 9.2
Other changes -0.3 -0.3 -0.3
Available- for- sale investments
    gain/loss arising from fair valuation, net of taxes 15.7 15.7 15.7
    transferred to income statement, net of tax -0.1 -0.1 -0.1
Cash fl ow hedges after taxes -52.8 -52.8 -52.8
Net income recognized directly in equity 8.0 146.9 -0.3 154.6 1.2 155.8
Profi t for the fi nancial period 167.0 167.0 1.4 168.4
Total recognized income and expense 
   for the period 8.0 146.9 166.7 321.6 2.6 324.2
Options exercised 5.4 16.7 22.1 22.1
Dividends paid -83.3 -83.3 -0.6 -83.9
Shareholders’ equity on 31 December 2005 329.4 44.0 7.0 146.9 625.8 1,153.1 9.8 1,163.0

Additional information on share capital is presented in Note 20, for retained earnings in note 22 and for fair value and other reserves in Note 23.

GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Wärtsilä Corporation (“Wärtsilä”) is a 
Finnish listed company organized un-
der the laws of Finland and domiciled 
in Helsinki.

Basis for preparation of the 
fi nancial statements
Th ese are the fi rst consolidated annu-
al fi nancial statements of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration and its subsidiaries (“Wärt-
silä Group”) prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Report-
ing Standards(“IFRS”).Prior to IFRS, 
Wärtsilä’s fi nancial statements were 
based on Finnish Accounting Stand-
ards (“FAS”). Th e consolidated fi nan-
cial statements are prepared in euro and 
reported in millions of euros. Report-
ing is based on the historical cost con-
vention unless otherwise stated in the 
accounting principles below or in the 
notes to the fi nancial statements.

On 1 January 2005 the Group 
adopted IFRS standards. IFRS 1 (First-
time Adoption of IFRS) was applied at 
the time of transition.  For the adoption 
of IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Rec-
ognition and Measurement) and IAS 
32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure 
and Presentation), Wärtsilä applied the 
exemption for fi rst-time adopters of 
IFRS not to restate comparative infor-
mation for 2004. Th e comparative fi g-
ures for 2004 and the opening balance 
sheet on 1 January 2004 have been ad-
justed in accordance with IFRS and the 
eff ects of adoption of IFRS are summa-
rized in Note 33, Transition to IFRS. 

Use of estimates
Th e preparation of the fi nancial state-
ments in accordance with IFRS requires 
management to make estimates and as-
sumptions that aff ect the valuation of 
the reported assets and liabilities and 
other information, such as contingent 
liabilities and the recognition of income 
and expenses in the income statement. 
Although these estimates are based on 
management’s best knowledge of cur-
rent events and actions, actual results 
may diff er from the estimates.

Principles of consolidation
Th e consolidated fi nancial statements 
include the parent company Wärt-
silä Corporation and all subsidiaries in 
which the parent company directly or 
indirectly holds more than 50 per cent 

of the voting rights or in which Wärt-
silä is otherwise in control,  as well as 
the Group’s associated companies (20 
to 50 per cent voting rights and signif-
icant infl uence over the company but 
not control over the fi nancial and op-
erating policies). Associated companies 
are included in the consolidated fi nan-
cial statements using the equity meth-
od. If the Group’s share of the associ-
ated company’s losses exceeds its inter-
est in the associated company, the car-
rying amount is written down to zero. 
After this losses are only reported if the 
Group has incurred obligations from 
the associated company.

Acquired or established subsidiaries 
and associated companies are includ-
ed in the consolidated fi nancial state-
ments from the day the company was 
acquired or established until ownership 
of the company legally terminates.

Acquired companies are account-
ed for using the purchase method of 
accounting according to which the 
acquired company’s identifi able as-
sets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
are measured at fair value on the date of 
acquisition. Th e diff erence between the 
purchase price and the company’s net 
identifi able assets, liabilities and con-
tingent liablities is reported as goodwill. 
In accordance with the exemptions un-
der IFRS 1, acquisitions prior to the 
transition date of 1 January 2004 have 
not been restated but previous values 
are taken as deemed cost. Th e good-
will values reported in the 31 Decem-
ber 2003 consolidated fi nancial state-
ments prepared in accordance with FAS 
have been taken as deemed cost, ex-
cept where the company’s assessment 
of the recoverable amount resulted in a 
write-down. Prior to the transition date 
goodwill was amortized over its expect-
ed useful life, up to a maximum of 20 
years. Goodwill is not amortized under 
IFRS but tested for impairment at least 
annually.

All intra-group transactions, divi-
dend distributions, receivables and li-
abilities and unrealized margins are 
eliminated in the consolidated fi nancial 
statements. In the income statement, 
minority interests have been separated 
from the income for the reporting peri-
od. In the Group’s balance sheet minor-
ity interests are shown as a separate item 
under equity.

Foreign subsidiaries
In the consolidated fi nancial state-
ments, the income statements and cash 
fl ows  of foreign subsidiaries are trans-
lated into euro at the quarterly average 
exchange rates. Balance sheets are trans-
lated into euro at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet date and 
translation diff erences are recognized in 
equity. Translation diff erences arising 
after the transition to IFRS are reported 
separately in the statement of changes in 
equity, whereas translation diff erences 
prior to the transition have been trans-
ferred to retained earnings in accord-
ance with the exemptions in IFRS 1.

Transactions in foreign currencies
Transactions denominated in a foreign 
currency are translated into euros using 
the exchange rate prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Receivables and li-
abilities are translated into euros at the 
exchange rate prevailing at the balance 
sheet date. Exchange rate gains and loss-
es related to non-fi nancial receivables 
and liabilites are reported on the appli-
cable line in the income statement and 
are included in operating income. Ex-
change rate diff erences related to fi nan-
cial receivables and fi nancial liabilities 
are reported as fi nancial items in the in-
come statement.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially reported at cost 
in the balance sheet and are thereafter 
valued at their fair value at each balance 
sheet date.

Certain derivatives are eligible for 
hedge accounting in accordance with 
IAS 39. Changes in the fair value of de-
rivative contracts that have been signed 
to hedge future cash fl ows (cash fl ow 
hedge) are reported under sharehold-
ers’ equity (diff erence in spot prices), 
provided that they meet the require-
ments for hedge accounting. Any ac-
crued profi t or loss in the hedge reserve 
under shareholders’ equity is reported 
as an adjustment to selling proceeds or 
transaction costs in the same period as 
any transactions relating to the hedged 
obligations or estimates.

As regards equity in foreign sub-
sidiaries situated outside the eurozone, 
these have largely been hedged against 
exchange rate fl uctuations through for-
eign currency borrowings and foreign 

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS
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exchange derivatives using the equity 
hedging method to reduce the eff ect of 
exchange rates on the Group’s equity. 
When a foreign subsidiary is sold, these 
translation diff erences are included in 
the gain or loss on disposal reported in 
the income statement.

For derivatives that do not satis-
fy the conditions for hedge accounting 
in accordance with IAS 39, changes in 
fair value are reported directly in the in-
come statement.

Th e Group documents the relation-
ship between each hedging instrument 
and the hedged asset upon entering in-
to a hedging arrangement, along with 
the risk management objective and the 
strategy applied. Th rough this process 
the hedging instrument is linked to the 
relevant assets and liabilities, projected 
business transactions or binding con-
tracts. Th e Group also documents its 
ongoing assessment of the eff ectiveness 
of the hedge as regards the relationship 
between a change in the derivative’s fair 
value and a change in the value of the 
hedged cash fl ows or transactions.

Th e fair value of interest rate swaps 
is calculated by discounting the under-
lying future cash fl ows. Currency for-
wards are valued at existing forward 
rates at the balance sheet date. Currency 
options are valued at their market value 
at the balance sheet date.

Net sales and revenue recognition
Sales are presented net of indirect sales 
taxes and discounts. Sales are recog-
nized when the signifi cant risks and re-
wards connected with ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer. Th is usu-
ally means that revenue recognition oc-
curs when a product or service is deliv-
ered to the customer in accordance with 
the terms of delivery. Revenue on long-
term  construction contracts and long-
term operating and maintenance agree-
ments is recognized in accordance with 
the percentage of completion method 
when it is possible to reliably identify 
the project and its revenue and costs. 
Th e percentage of completion is based 
on the ratio of costs incurred to total es-
timated costs to date for long-term con-
struction contracts, while for long-term 
operating and maintenance agreements 
it is calculated on the basis of the pro-
portion of the contracted services per-
formed.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are ex-
pensed in the reporting period during 
which they occur except for develop-
ment costs, which are capitalized when 

it is probable that the development 
project will generate future economic 
benefi ts for the Group, and when cer-
tain criteria, including commercial and 
technological feasibility, have been met. 
Th ese projects involve the development 
of new or signifi cantly improved prod-
ucts or production processes. Capital-
ized development costs are amortized 
and the cost of buildings, machinery 
and facilities for development depreci-
ated on a systematic basis over their ex-
pected useful lives. Grants received are 
reported as a reduction in costs for the 
period in question.

Employee benefi ts
Group companies in diff erent countries 
have various  pension plans in accord-
ance with local conditions and practic-
es. Th ese pension plans are classifi ed ei-
ther as defi ned contribution or defi ned 
benefi t plans.

Th e contributions to defi ned contri-
bution plans are charged to the income 
statement in the year to which they re-
late. Th e present value of the obligation 
arising from defi ned benefi t plans is de-
termined using the projected unit cred-
it method and the plan assets are meas-
ured at fair value at the measurement 
date. Th e Group’s obligation with re-
spect to a plan is calculated by identi-
fying the extent to which the cumul-
tive unrecognized actuarial gain or loss 
exceeds by more than 10 per cent the 
greater of the present value of the de-
fi ned benefi t obligation and the fair val-
ue of the plan assets.  Th e excess is rec-
ognized in the income statement over 
the expected average remaining work-
ing lives of employees participating in 
the plan. Defi ned benefi t plans are cal-
culated by qualifi ed actuaries. In ac-
cordance with the exemption under 
IFRS 1, all cumulative actuarial gains 
and losses have been recognized in re-
tained earnings at the transition date, 1 
Janaury, 2004.

Share-based payments
Under IFRS 2 the fair value of employ-
ee options is reported as an expense and 
an increase in shareholders’ equity. Th is 
does not apply to any existing option 
plans of the Group, as these were grant-
ed before IFRS 2 came into force.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash 
in hand and deposits held at call with 
banks and similar institutions. Other 
liquid funds comprise short-term high-
ly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less and 

which are subject to only minor fl uctu-
ations in value.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognized at their 
anticipated realizable value, which is 
the original invoiced amount less an es-
timated valuation allowance for impair-
ment on these receivables. Receivables 
are valued individually and reported at 
their probable value. Credit losses are 
expensed in the income statement.

Loans receivable and fi nancial 
liabilities
Loans receivable as well as fi nancial lia-
bilities are recognized at the settlement 
date and measured at amortized cost 
using the eff ective interest rate method. 
Transaction costs are included in the in-
itially recognized amount.

Inventory valuation
Inventories are carried at the lower of 
cost or net realizable value. Cost in-
cludes allocated purchasing and man-
ufacturing overhead costs in addition 
to direct manufacturing costs.  Inven-
tory valuation is primarily based on the 
weighted average cost.

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Th e diff erence between the purchase 
price and the fair value of a compa-
ny’s net assets and contingent liabilities 
at the date of acquisition is reported as 
goodwill. Under IFRS goodwill is not 
amortized but tested for impairment at 
least annually.

Other intangible assets include pat-
ents, licences, capitalized development 
costs, software and other intellectual 
property rights. Th ese are valued at cost 
except for intangible assets identifi ed 
in connection with acquisitions, which 
are valued at the fair value at the acqui-
sition date. Intangible assets are amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets, 
for which the time limit for the right of 
use is agreed, are amortized over the life 
of the contract. 

Th e general guidelines for scheduled 
amortization are:
Development costs  5 – 10 years
Software 3 – 7 years
Other intellectual 
property rights 5 – 20 years

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation 
Fixed assets acquired by the Group are 
recorded in the balance sheet at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment losses. Th e book values of certain 
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land areas and buildings include revalu-
ation of EUR 5.3 million recorded pri-
or to the transition date of 1 January 
2004 and included within the deemed 
cost of land and building in accordance 
with the exemption under IFRS 1. Th e 
fi xed assets of acquired subsidiaries are 
valued at their fair value at the acquisi-
tion date. Depreciation is based on the 
following estimated useful lives:
Other capitalized 
expenditures 3 – 10 years
Buildings               10 – 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5 – 20 years

Investment properties
Properties which are not used in the 
Group’s operating activities, or which 
are held to earn rentals or for capital ap-
preciation or both, are classifi ed as in-
vestment properties. Investment proper-
ties are treated as long-term investments 
and are valued at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairments.

Leases
Lease agreements where all material re-
wards and risks of ownership have been 
transferred to the Group are classifi ed 
as fi nance leases. Assets acquired under 
fi nance lease are recognized as fi xed as-
sets at the lower of the fair value of the 
leased asset or the estimated present val-
ue of the underlying lease payments.Th e 
corresponding rental obligation, net of 
fi nance charge, is included in interest-
bearing liabilities with the interest ele-
ment of the fi nance charge being recog-
nized in the income statement over the 
lease period.  Assets acquired under fi -
nance leases are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives in accordance 
with the same principles that apply to 
other similar fi xed assets.

Lease agreements where the risks 
and benefi ts of ownership have not been 
transferred to the Group are classifi ed 
as operating leases. Operating lease pay-
ments are reported as rental expenses.

Investments in other companies
Investments in other companies are 
classifi ed as available-for-sale invest-
ments and are recognized at fair value. 
Listed shares are valued at their market 
value. Unlisted shares for which the fair 
value cannot be reliably measured are 
valued at cost less impairment. Chang-
es in fair value are reported directly in 
shareholders’ equity until the shares are 
disposed of, when the accumulated fair 
value changes are released from equity 
to the income statement. If the fair val-
ue of shares becomes permanently im-
paired or there is objective evidence that 

it is impaired, impairment is recognized 
in the income statement.

Gains and losses on disposal and 
impairments of shares that are attribut-
able to operating activities are includ-
ed in operating income, while gains and 
losses on disposal and impairments of 
other shares are included in fi nancial in-
come and expenses.

Impairments
Th e carrying amounts of assets are re-
viewed at each balance sheet date to de-
termine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. Th e assets are divided 
into the smallest possible cash-generat-
ing units that are eff ectively independ-
ent of any other assets of the Group. An 
impairment loss is recognized whenever 
the carrying value of the assets or cash-
generating unit exceeds their value in 
use. An asset’s value in use is the high-
er of its net realizable value or the recov-
erable amount from the asset. Th e re-
coverable amount is based on discount-
ed future cash fl ows. Previously report-
ed impairment losses of tangible assets 
are reversed if the assumptions for cal-
culating the recoverable amount have 
changed.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized in the balance 
sheet when the Group has a present le-
gal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, and it is probable that 
an outfl ow of economic benefi ts will be 
required to settle the obligation, and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions 
can arise from warranties, environmen-
tal risks, litigations, forecasted losses on 
projects, onerous contracts and restruc-
turing costs for example.

Estimated future warranty costs re-
lating to products supplied are recorded 
as provisions. Realized warranty costs, 
together with changes in warranty lia-
bility, are expensed during the report-
ing period in which they occur.

Provisions for restructuring costs 
are made once the personnel concerned 
have been informed of the terms or a 
restructuring plan has been established. 
Th e plan must indicate which activities 
and personnel will be aff ected and the 
timing and cost of implementation. 

Income taxes
Th e income statement includes tax-
es on the Group’s consolidated taxable 
income for the reporting period in ac-
cordance with local tax regulations, tax 
adjustments for previous reporting pe-
riods and changes in deferred taxes. De-

ferred tax liabilities and assets are calcu-
lated on all temporary diff erences aris-
ing from the diff erence between the tax 
basis of assets and liablities and the car-
rying values using the enacted tax rates 
at the balance sheet date. Th e balance 
sheet includes deferred tax liabilities 
in its entirety and deferred tax assets at 
their estimated probable amount.

Dividend distribution to 
the shareholders
Th e dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is not deducted from dis-
tributable equity until approved by the 
company’s annual general meeting.

Application of new and amended IFRS 
standards and IFRIC interpretations
In 2006 Wärtsilä Group will apply the 
following amended standards and new 
interpretations published by the IASB 
in 2004 and 2005:

IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Rec-
ognition and Measurement). Changes 
made after 31 March 2004:
• Cash fl ow hedges of forecast intra-

group transactions: issued 14 April 
2005, enters into force 1 January 
2006

• Fair value option: issued 16 June 
2005, enters into force 1 January 
2006

• Financial guarantee contracts: issued 
18 August 2005, enters into force 1 
January 2006.

IFRIC 4 interpretation Determin-
ing Whether an Arrangement Contains 
a Lease: issued 2 December 2004, enters 
into force 1 January 2006.

IFRIC 8 interpretation Scope of 
IFRS 2: issued 12 January 2006, enters 
into force 1 May 2006.

Amendment to IAS 19 Employee 
Benefi ts – Actuarial Gains and Losses, 
Group Plans and Disclosures: issued 16 
December 2004, enters into force 1 Jan-
uary 2006.

Th e company considers that the ap-
plication of these amended standards 
and new interpretations will have no 
material impact on the Group’s future 
accounts.

In 2007 Wärtsilä Group will adopt 
the following new and amended stand-
ards published by the IASB in 2005:

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Dis-
closures

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation 
of Financial Statements – Capital Dis-
closures.

Th e Group is currently evaluating 
the impacts of these standards on its fu-
ture accounts.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Segment information

Wärtsilä reports its business segment as its primary segment and its 
geographical areas as its secondary segment. The primary segment 
consists of the Power Businesses and Imatra Steel. Holdings are re-
ported as a separate segment because shareholding is not a part of 
the corporate’s core business. The Power Businesses are subdivided 
into two mutually supportive market areas, Ship Power and Power 
Plants. These offer customers the same product concept modifi ed for 
specifi c applications. The main products for both these markets are 
gas and diesel engines and related service. The market segments are 
highly dependent on each other. 

In the Power Businesses, the design, related research and devel-
opment and manufacturing required for the engines sold to both 
markets take place in the same R&D centres and factories, and 
the manufacturing process is the same for each market. Similarly, 
the same Group companies are responsible for the distribution of 
these products and their service. Capacity costs cannot be reliably 
allocated to the two different markets. These costs are signifi cant 

and vary between the two units in different years. Customers in both 
markets are capital-intensive corporations with global operations. 
Development of the two market areas is strongly linked to global 
economic trends. 

Imatra Steel produces long special steels for the automotive industry 
and other advanced sectors of the mechanical engineering industry. 
During 2005, Imatra Steel became part of a new steel company, 
Oy Ovako Ab, that began operations on 10 May. Until that date 
Imatra Steel is reported as its own segment. Wärtsilä owns 26.5% 
of Oy Ovako Ab. This holding is consolidated as an associated 
company and is included under Holdings along with Wärtsilä’s other 
holdings such as Assa Abloy. 

The secondary segment consists of geographical areas Europe, 
America, Asia and other continents. Income statement items not allo-
cated to the segments are items related to fi nancial items and taxes. 
Non-allocated assets and liabilities consist of tax assets and liabilities.

Business segments 2005
Power Imatra Holdings Non- Group 

MEUR Businesses Steel allocated
Net sales 2,520.3 119.0 2,638.8
Operating income 202.5 21.8 224.3
Financial income and expenses, dividends 5.8 -29.2 -23.4
Net income from assets available for sales 0.5 0.5
Share of profi t of associates 10.4 0.5 10.9
Income before taxes 212.4

Assets 2,389.7 385.3 93.7 2,868.6
Liabilities 1,597.0 108.7 1,705.7
Investments 204.5 3.4 23.2 231.1
Depreciation 67.2 4.4 71.6

Business segments 2004
Power Imatra Holdings Non- Group 

MEUR Businesses Steel allocated
Net sales 2,224.7 254.4 2,478.2
Operating income 87.7 24.3 112.0
Financial income and expenses, dividends 6.4 -10.1 -3.7
Net income from assets available for sales 107.7 107.7
Share of profi t of associates 1.4 1.4
Income before taxes 217.3

Assets 2,067.0 189.0 45.8 95.5 2,397.3
Liabilities 1,285.0 123.9 87.8 1,496.8
Investments 63.4 5.8 69.2
Depreciation 50.7 12.3 63.0

The intersegment sales is insignifi cant.

Geographical segments 2005
Europe Asia Americas Other Non- Group 

MEUR allocated
Net sales 1,108.8 951.0 395.4 183.6 2,638.8
Assets 2,227.4 261.3 264.2 22.1 93.7 2,868.6
Investments 186.3 19.6 24.8 0.5 231.1

Geographical segments 2004
Europe Asia Americas Other Non- Group 

MEUR allocated
Net sales 1,140.5 796.1 368.4 173.2 2,478.2
Assets 1,928.1 177.6 178.2 18.0 95.5 2,397.3
Investments 50.3 14.5 3.9 0.5 69.2

In geographical segments net sales is split by customers destination and assets and investments by origin.
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2. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions 2005

DEUTZ AG

At the end of March Wärtsilä acquired the service actitivities for 
DEUTZ marine engines from DEUTZ AG. In the period April-De-
cember, the net sales of the DEUTZ activities were EUR 35 million.

Acquisition price:
Consideration paid in cash 114.6
Acquisition costs 1.1

115.7
Acquired assets to fair value -113.1
Goodwill 2.6

Specifi cation of acquired assets:
Customer relations 85.2
Trademark 6.4
Technology 13.3
Machinery and equipment 0.5
Inventories 8.0
Pension obligations -0.4
Total 113.1

GERHARDT HOLDING CO. INC

At the beginning of December Wärtsilä acquired the service activi-
ties of Gerhardt Holding. The December net sales for Gerhardt 
activities were EUR 2 million.

Acquisition price:
Consideration paid in cash 9.8
Other direct acquisition costs 0.8

10.7
Acquired assets to fair value 10.7
Goodwill 0.0

Specifi cation of acquired assets:
Trademark 0.6
Machinery & equipment 2.6
Inventories 4.7
Receivables 3.8
Liabilities -0.9
Total 10.7

NAVALIPS S.A.

At the beginning of December Wärtsilä acquired the remaining 
50% of its former associated company Navalips. This has been 
consolidated as a subsidiary from the beginning of December.

Acquisition price:
Consideration paid in cash 0.2
Acquired assets to fair value 1.1
Goodwill -1.0

Negative goodwill has been booked in the income statement. 

Specifi cation of acquired assets:
Intangible assets 0.0
Property, plant and equipment 3.0
Inventories 1.0
Receivables 1.7
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5
Interest-bearing debt -0.9
Non-interest-bearing debt -3.2
Total 2.2
of which 50% acquired 1.1

Acquisitions 2004

Ciserv Europoort BV.

At the beginning of June Wärtsilä acquired two Dutch marine elec-
trical repair and service companies. The new company was named 
Ciserv Europoort BV. It has been consolidated as a subsidiary from
30 June 2004 and the sales in 2004 were EUR 3.5 million.

Acquisition price:
Consideration paid in cash 3.0
Acquired assets to fair value 1.3
Goodwill 1.7

Specifi cation of acquired assets:
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment 0.2
Inventories 0.4
Receivables 1.6
Interest-bearing debt 0.0
Non-interest-bearing debt -0.9
Total 1.3
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disposals 2005

IMATRA STEEL OY

On 22 April 2005 Rautaruukki Corporation, AB SKF in Sweden and 
Wärtsilä Corporation signed the merger of the long steel businesses 
into a jointly owned new company named Oy Ovako Ab. 
Wärtsilä’s former subsidiary, Imatra Steel Oy, became a part of the 
new company.

Restructuring gave EUR 5.3 million goodwill in the 
associated company.

Value transferred:
Equity at 30 April 2005 in Imatra Steel Group 71.6
Conversion of loan to equity 23.2

94.8

Specifi cation of transferred net assets:
Goodwill 1.0
Intangible assets 1.5
Property, plant and equipment 74.7
Investments available for sale 0.3
Deferred tax receivables 0.9
Inventories 66.2
Interest-bearing receivables 1.0
Trade receivables 52.8
Other receivables 4.9
Cash and cash equivalents 9.3
Non-current interest-bearing debt -29.7
Deferred tax liabilities -11.5
Provisions -2.6
Current interest-bearing debt -44.1
Trade payables -32.0
Other current liabilities -21.1
Total 71.6

5. Material and services

MEUR 2005 2004
Raw material and consumables
Purchases during the fi nancial year -993.7 -958.4
Change in inventories 90.6 28.6
External services -619.4 -510.7
Total -1,522.5 -1,440.5

6. Employee benefi t expenses

MEUR 2005 2004
Wages and salaries 436.2 456.6
Pension costs
   Defi ned benefi t plans 5.4 -11.7
   Other pension and past service costs 36.9 47.7
Other compulsory personnel costs 61.5 61.8
Total 540.0 554.4

Disability pension obligation of EUR 27.3 million was reversed in 
Finland in 2004 owing to changes in the pension system.

Salaries and emoluments to senior management

Presidents and members of 
the Board of Directors 1.0 0.9

The Company’s Board of Directors decides the remunerations of 
the President and his immediate subordinates.

Personnel on average 2005 2004

Power Businesses 11,625 11,133
Imatra Steel 424 1,228
Total 12,049 12,361

During 2005 has Imatra Steel was consolidated for four months.

3. Projects for which percentage-of-completion method 
is applied

Sales include EUR 312.3 million (203.3) of income recognized 
based on the stage of completion of long- term construction con-
tracts. The cumulative revenue recognized from long-term construc-
tion contracts in progress amounted to MEUR 579.5 (443.4), with a 
result of MEUR 3.8 (35.5). The total amount of advances received is 
MEUR 299.8 (191.7). Trade receivables from the revenue recogni-
tion netted with the advances received are EUR 77.3 million (45.6).

4. Other operating income

MEUR 2005 2004
Rental income 2.1 2.6
Profi t on sales of fi xed assets 13.2 10.1
Government grants 2.9 1.8
Sales of scrap 1.9 4.6
Other operating income 6.6 7.8
Total 26.8 26.9
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7. Depreciation and writedowns

Depreciation according to plan

MEUR 2005 2004
Intangible assets 4.0 6.7
Other long-term expenditure 18.9 9.1
Buildings and structures 9.1 9.6
Machinery and equipment 33.3 43.5
Other tangible assets 6.3 5.3
Construction in progress 0.1
Total depreciation according to plan 71.6 74.3

Writedowns and reversals of fi xed 
   assets -11.3

In 2004 a EUR 14.5 million writedown related to restructuring 
measures was reversed. As of January 2004 goodwill has not been 
amortized.

8. Financial income and expenses  
 

Gains and losses on fair value hedges are reported net of the gain 
or loss on the hedged item. Only foreign exchange revaluation 
gains and losses arising from purely fi nancial exposures such as 
loans denominated are reported in other fi nancial items.

MEUR 2005 2004
Dividend income 7.2 8.8

Interest income 2.9 4.2

Interest expenses
   Current and non-current loans -11.1 -12.8
   Other -3.7 -0.9
Total interest expenses -14.7 -13.7

Total interest income and expenses -11.9 -9.5

Other fi nancial income 5.5 1.0

Changes in fair values of derivative 
   fi nancial instruments -3.8

Other fi nancial expenses -18.4 -3.3

Exchange rate differences -2.1 -0.4

Writedowns of fi nancial assets -0.4

Total other fi nancial income and 
   expenses -18.7 -3.0

9. Income taxes

MEUR 2005 2004
Income taxes on operations
   for the fi nancial year -42.4 -62.4
   for prior years 1.9 -0.5
Change in deferred taxes -3.5 -23.2
Total -44.0 -86.1

Profi t before taxes 212.4 217.3
Tax calculated at the domestic 
   corporation tax rate 1 -55.2 -63.0
Effect of changed tax rates -5.6
Effect of different tax rates in foreign 
   subsidiaries -3.3 -2.2
Effect of income not subject to tax and 
   non-deductible expenses 1.4 -6.5
Utlilization of previously unrecognized 
   tax losses carried forward 12.6 6.1
Unrecognized taxes on losses carried 
   forward -7.4 -7.1
Other taxes -4.9 -7.9
Effect of share of profi t of associates 2.8 0.4
Other temporary differences 8.0 0.3
Income tax  for prior years 1.9 -0.5
Tax charge -44.0 -86.1

1 In 2005 26%, in 2004 29%

10. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profi t for the period 
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding. In calculations of diluted earnings 
per share, the weighted average number of shares is adjusted by 
the dilutive effect of stock options outstanding during the period. 

MEUR 2005 2004
Profi t attributable to equity holders of 
   the parent company (basic/diluted) 167.0 130.0
Thousands of shares
Weighted average number of shares
   outstanding 93,010 91,341
Effect of issued share options 820 438
Diluted weighted average number of
   shares outstanding 93,830 91,779
Basic earnings per share (EUR) 1.80 1.42
Diluted earnings per share (EUR) 1.78 1.42



WÄRTSILÄ 2005     25

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Intangible assets
Construction

in progress Other
Intangible  and advances long-term Goodwill Total Total

MEUR rights  paid expenditure 2005 2004
Acquisition cost at 1 January 48.3 8.0 79.0 457.9 593.3 602.0
Changes in exchange rates 0.2 0.3 5.0 5.5 -2.3
Acquisitions 105.5 2.6 108.1
Disposals -1.5 -1.0 -2.6
Additions 3.9 6.5 6.4 16.9 18.8
Disposals -0.2 -6.3 -6.5 -25.2
Intra-balance sheet transfer 0.4 -6.0 39.2 33.5
Acquisition cost at 31 December 52.6 8.5 222.5 464.5 748.2 593.3

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January -20.4 -38.8 -98.3 -157.5 -164.8
Changes in exchange rates -0.1 -0.2 -0.5 -0.7 0.6
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers 0.2 6.7 6.9 22.1
Depreciation during the fi nancial year -4.0 -18.9 -22.8 -15.8
Impairments 0.3
Intra-balance sheet transfer -32.9 -32.9
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December -24.3 -83.9 -98.8 -207.0 -157.5

Book value at 31 December 2005 28.3 8.5 138.6 365.7 541.1
Book value at 31 December 2004 27.8 8.0 40.3 359.6 435.8

As of January 2004 goodwill has not been amortized.

Impairment test for cash-generating units 
containing goodwill

MEUR 2005 2004
Power Businesses 365.7 358.6
Imatra Steel 1.0
Total 365.7 359.6

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (CGU) is determined on value-in-use calculations, based on cash fl ow projections 
from strategic plans, extending over a fi ve- year period. These plans have been approved by the management. The estimated performance of 
the CGUs is based on utilization of the property, plant and equipment in their current condition. Cash fl ows for the period extending over the 
set fi ve- year period in the strategic plans are calculated using the terminal value method. A steady growth rate is used in projecting 
the terminal value. 

The discount rate is the weighted average pre-tax cost of capital (WACC) as defi ned by Wärtsilä. The components of the WACC are risk-free 
rate, market risk premium, industry specifi c beta, cost of debt and debt equity ratio. Wärtsilä has used a WACC of 7.8% (2004: 8.9%) in the 
calculations. 

As a result of the impairment test no impairment loss was recognized for the period ended 31 December 2004 and 2005 respectively. In the 
opening balance sheet at 1 January 2004 an impairment of EUR 3.4 million was recognized on BioPower. In management’s opinion changes 
in the basic assumptions used to form the fair value of the units would not change the real value of the units signifi cantly, nor would their fair 
values be exceeded. The following cash-generating units have signifi cant carrying amounts of goodwill:

MEUR 2005 2004
Propulsion 262.0 257.6
Ciserv 11.3 11.1
Other 92.5 90.9
Total 365.7 359.6
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12. Property, plant & equipment

Land
and 

water

Buildings 
and 

structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Construction 
in progress 
& advances 

paid

Other
tangible

assets

Invest-
ment

properties
Total
2005

Total
2004MEUR

Acquisition cost at 1 January 24.8 213.2 649.1 11.5 66.0 14.2 978.8 988.6
Changes in exchange rates 0.1 2.4 7.8 0.3 1.9 12.6 -15.0
Acquisitions 1.9 0.4 3.6 0.1 6.0 0.2

-3.6 -12.4 -53.6 -4.4 -0.7 -74.7
Additions 8.3 35.0 12.7 6.2 62.1 48.5
Disposals -6.1 -52.7 -202.9 -0.2 -2.0 -2.2 -266.1 -43.5
Intra-balance sheet transfer 0.6 -4.3 3.7 -7.3 1.4 5.2 -0.6
Acquisition cost at 31 December 17.7 154.8 442.8 12.7 72.9 17.2 718.1 978.8

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January -104.4 -473.2 -0.5 -43.7 -621.8 -616.0
Changes in exchange rates -0.7 -3.6 -0.1 -1.3 -5.7 9.1
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and
   transfers 28.4 198.5 -0.1 4.2 231.1 32.6
Depreciation during the fi nancial year -9.1 -33.3 0.0 -6.3 -48.7 -58.5
Impairments 11.0
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December -85.8 -311.5 -0.7 -47.1 -445.2 -621.8

Book value at 31 December 2005 17.7 69.0 131.3 11.9 25.8 17.2 272.9
Book value at 31 December 2004 34.4 99.1 176.0 10.9 22.3 14.2 357.0

Value of fi nancial leased assets included 
   in book value

2005 0.7 3.5 0.3 4.5
2004 0.8 0.5 0.7 2.0

13. Investments in associated companies

MEUR 2005 2004
Book value at 1 January 2.8 2.7
Buying of shares 95.6 0.1
Share of results 10.9 1.4
Dividends -0.4 -0.8
Selling / decrease of shares -0.5 -0.6
Book value at 31 December 108.5 2.8

Summary fi nancial information on associates (100%) is as follows:

Year 2005:
Holding % Assets Liabilities Equity Net Profi t for 

MEUR sales the period
Oy Ovako Ab Finland 26.5 839.4 459.0 380.4 868.7 39.3
AWEK Industrial Patents Ltd. Oy Finland 25.0 0.3 0.2 0.1 2.0 -0.1
Wartsila Navim Diesel S.r.l. Italy 40.0 17.1 12.1 5.0 27.4 2.1
Repropel Sociedad de reparacao de 
   helices LDA Portugal 50.0 0.9 0.7 0.2 0.9 0.1
WD Power Investment Ky Finland 21.7 8.9 0.0 8.9 0.0 0.2

Year 2004:
Holding % Assets Liabilities Equity Net Profi t for 

MEUR sales the period
AWEK Industrial Patents Ltd. Oy Finland 25.0 0.4 0.1 0.2 2.0 0.0
Wartsila Navim Diesel S.r.l. Finland 40.0 8.6 4.8 3.9 24.5 3.4
Navalips SA Italy 50.0 4.1 2.4 2.2 4.1 -0.4
Repropel Sociedad de reparacao de 
   helices LDA Portugal 50.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 1.0 0.1
WD Power Investment Ky Finland 21.7 10.5 0.0 10.5 0.0
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14. Joint ventures

The Group has a 50% interest in the joint venture company Wärtsilä Qiyao Diesel Company Ltd. in China. The company is in the start-up 
process and is building a diesel engine factory in Linggang outside Shanghai. Part of the planned share capital has been paid in by both par-
ties and cost commitments for the factory plant totalled roughly EUR 5 million at the year end.

15. Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments include listed and unlisted shares. Listed shares are measured at fair value. For unlisted shares the fair value 
cannot be measured reliably, in which case the investment is carried at cost.

MEUR 2005 2004
Book value at 1 January 68.4 96.1
Changes in exchange rates 1.8 -1.1
Acquisitions 3.0 0.3
Disposals -1.1 -26.6
Writedowns -0.4
Fair value adjustment 212.2
Book value at 31 December 284.4 68.4

Selling profi t in income statement 0.5 107.7

2005
Book value

2005
Market value

2004
Book valueMEUR

Listed shares
Rautaruukki Corporation K 0.1
Sampo Plc A 3.8 28.0 3.8
Technopolis Plc 0.1 0.0 0.1
Assa Abloy Ab 41.8 229.9 41.8
Total values of listed shares 45.7 258.0 45.8

Other shares 26.4 26.4 22.6
Total shares 72.1 284.4 68.4

16. Trade receivables, other receivables and interest-bearing investments

MEUR 2005 2004
Long-term    
Non-interest-bearing
   Trade receivables from other companies 5.2
   Loans receivable from other companies 2.4 3.5
   Other receivables 1.7 1.6
Interest-bearing
   Interest-bearing investments, associated companies 22.7 2.2
   Interest-bearing investments, others 4.5 4.8
Total 31.4 17.2

Current  
Non-interest-bearing
   Trade receivables from associated companies 3.4 2.6
   Trade receivables from others 666.8 574.2
   Loan receivables from other companies 0.2 0.1
   Accrued receivables from associated companies 0.7
   Other receivables 106.7 107.3
Interest-bearing
   Interest-bearing investments, others 0.9 1.9
Total 778.7 686.1
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18. Deferred taxes

MEUR 2005 2004
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carryforwards 41.0 48.4
Employee benefi ts 4.9 6.1
Restructuring plan 4.3
Group eliminations 10.8 11.0
Other temporary differences 21.0 13.2
Total 77.6 82.9

Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible obligations assets 6.9 23.3
Pension obligations 0.3
Fair value adjustments 56.2
Other temporary differences 15.7 15.6
Total 78.8 39.2

Net deferred tax assets -1.1 43.7

At December 31, 2005 the Group had temporary differences on which no deferred tax receivables were booked totalling EUR 71.8 million, as 
it is uncertain if they will be realized. Most of them were related to cumulative losses, in total EUR 69.0 million.

19. Pension obligations

MEUR 2005 2004
Defi ned benefi t plan 22.0 26.4
Other past service obligations 28.4 29.2
Pension obligations total 50.5 55.7

Pension cover is based on the legislation and agreements in force in each country. In Finland most of the pension obligations are covered by 
the Employee Pensions system (TEL). The largest defi ned benefi t plans are used in the Netherlands, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. 
Most of these defi ned benefi t pension plans are managed by pension funds and their assets are not included in the Group’s assets. Wärtsilä’s 
subsidiaries make their payments to pension funds in accordance with the local legislation and practice in each country. Authorized actuaries 
in each country have performed the actuarial calculations required for the defi ned benefi t plans.

MEUR 2005 2004
Other receivables
Interest receivables 1.0 3.9
Other fi nancial items 5.7 5.7
Insurance receivables 1.7 4.8
Rental receivables 2.3 2.2
Project accruals 4.4 15.2
Other accruals 29.4 24.2
Value-added tax receivables 25.9 21.0
Other receivables 37.3 32.0
Total 108.5 108.9

Non-current 1.7 1.6
Current 106.7 107.3

17. Cash and cash equivalents

MEUR 2005 2004
Cash and bank balances 99.9 151.0
Financial assets 19.8 18.6
Total 119.6 169.6



WÄRTSILÄ 2005     29

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEUR 2005 2004
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet:
Present value of unfunded obligations 8.4 9.7
Present value of funded obligations 283.6 258.7
Fair value of plan assets -291.7 -250.2
Unrecognized actuarial gains (-) and losses (+) 6.5 -4.4
Unrecognized past service costs -0.1 -0.1
Unrecognized assets 15.4 12.8
Net liability 22.0 26.4

Balance sheet reconciliation:
Net obligations at 1 January 26.4 45.2
Translation differences -0.1 0.0
Net periodic pension cost in income statement 5.4 -11.7
Contribution paid to the fund -11.1 -9.3
Benefi ts paid to the retirees from the fund -0.3 -0.4
Change in limit on assets 2.6 2.5
Impact of acquired and disposed companies -0.9
Net liability at 31 December 22.0 26.4

Expenses recognized in the income statement:

Current service cost 7.7 9.3
Interest cost 11.4 11.9

Expected return on plan assets -12.9 -12.5

Actuarial gains (-) and losses (+) -0.3 -1.5
Past service costs -0.1 6.1
Gains and losses on curtailments and settlements -0.4 -25.0
Total defi ned benefi t expenses 5.4 -11.7

Actual return on plan assets 24.2 12.3

Actuarial assumptions: 2005 2004
 Europe Other  Europe Other

Discount rate (%) 3.5 – 6.0 2.0 –13.0  3.5 – 6.0  2.0 –11.0
Expected rates of return on plan assets (%) 4.0 – 6.5 2.5 – 9.0  3.5 – 7.0 2.5 –11.0
Expected rates on salary increase (%) 1.5 – 4.0 1.0 –10.0  1.5 – 4.0 1.0 –10.0
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20. Share capital of the parent company
Number of Share Share issue

Share capital shares capital premium Total
1 January 2004 59,649,972 208.8 117.9 326.6
Debentures converted 25 May 2004 2,050,440 7.2 7.2
Bonus issue at 7 December 2004 30,850,205 108.0 -90.6 17.4
31 December 2004 92,550,617 323.9 27.3 351.2
Bonds with options subscribed 1,556,499 5.4 16.7 22.2
31 December 2005 94,107,116 329.4 44.0 373.4

21. Option rights

Changes in option rights 2005

    Option 
scheme 

2001

  Option 
scheme 

2002 Total
Shares based Shares based Shares based

Option on option Option on option Option on option
rights rights rights rights rights rights

1 January 2005 1,500,000 2,250,000 800,000 1,200,000 2,300,000 3,450,000
Shares subscribed with option rights 680,366 1,020,549 357,300 535,950 1,037,666 1,556,499
31 December 2005 819,634 1,229,451 442,700 664,050 1,262,334 1,893,501

Option rights for management

Following the decision of the AGM on 20 March 2001, a total of 1,500,000 options were issued to key persons in the Wärtsilä Group, enti-
tling them to subscribe for Wärtsilä B shares. The share subscription period began on 1 April 2003 and ends on 31 March 2007. Any extra 
dividends distributed after 25 May 2001 and before the subscription of shares will be deducted from the subscription price. The share option 
scheme covers 78 individuals. Trading in the 2001 options began on the Helsinki Stock Exchange on 7 March 2005.

The AGM on 12 March 2002 approved a new option scheme for key persons in Wärtsilä Group. The number of options is 800,000 and they 
may be exercised to subscribe for Wärtsilä B shares. The subscription of shares began on 1 April 2004 and ends on 31 March 2008. Any 
extra dividends distributed after 17 May 2002 and before subscription of shares will be deducted from the subscription price. Trading in the 
2002 options began on the Helsinki Stock Exchanges on 1 April 2004.

Under the terms and conditions of Wärtsilä’s 2001 and 2002 option schemes, should the company increase its share capital with a bonus 
issue before the subscription of shares, the share subscription ratio shall be amended so that the ratio to the share capital of shares to be 
subscribed for by virtue of the options remains unchanged. Accordingly, the share subscription price as determined under the terms and con-
ditions of the option schemes will be divided by 1.5 and two (2) options shall entitle their holder to subscribe for three (3) Wärtsilä Corporation 
B shares. The effect of the extra dividend, decided at the extra Annual General Meeting on 1 December 2004, on the share subscription price 
of the 2001 options is EUR 16.70 and on the share subscription price of the 2002 options EUR 9.50.

The company had no other share-linked personnel incentive schemes in force during 2005.

Under IFRS 2 the fair value of employee options is to be reported as an expense and an increase in shareholders’ equity. This does not apply 
to any existing option programmes of the Group, as these were exercisable when IFRS 2 came into force.

Management holdings

The members of the Board of Directors, the CEO, the CEO’s deputy and the corporations under their control own altogether 247,909 Wärtsilä 
Corporation shares, which represent 0.3% of the stock and 0.3% of the voting rights.

Under the 2001 option scheme issue the CEO and his deputy hold 104,000 option rights, entitling them to subscribe for altogether 156,000 
shares, or 0.2% of the current total number of shares and 0.05% of the voting rights.

Under the 2002 option scheme issue the CEO and his deputy hold altogether 65,000 option rights, entitling them to subscribe for at most 
97,500 shares, or 0.1% of the current total number shares and 0.03% of the voting rights.
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22. Fair value and other reserves
Investments

Cash fl ow Other available
MEUR hedges hedges for sale Total
Difference between fair value and book value   
   1 January 2005 58.8 -0.8 191.2 249.1
Deferred tax liability -15.5 0.2 -49.7 -64.9
Fair value and other reserves 
   1 January 2005 43.3 -0.6 141.5 184.2
Fair value adjustments -71.6 -0.2 21.1 -50.7
Deferred tax liability 18.9 0.1 -5.5 13.5
Fair value and other reserves 
31 December 2005 -9.3 -0.8 157.1 146.9

23. Distributable equity

MEUR 2005 2004
Retained earnings on 31 December 625.8 542.5
   of which restricted -63.8 -100.8
Voluntary provisions and depreciation difference -6.0 -31.7
Deferred tax liability 1.6 8.5
Non-distributable share issue gains -3.8 -3.8
Distributable equity 553.8 414.6

24. Provisions
Warranty Foreseeable Restruc- Other Total Total

MEUR Litigation liabilities losses turing provisions 2005 2004
Provisions at 1 January 9.7 70.5 22.0 41.0 6.5 149.8 132.3
Changes in exchange rates 0.4 0.1 0.4
Additions 2.4 39.9 7.8 9.3 59.3 87.4
Used provisions -2.3 -43.8 -8.1 -24.0 -1.7 -79.9 -62.4
Released provisions -4.5 -5.7 -0.2 1.8 -8.6 -7.6
Provisions at 31 December 5.3 67.0 16.1 16.7 16.2 121.2 149.8

Non-current 17.0 13.4
Current 104.1 136.5

The Group is a defendant in a number of lawsuits that arise out of, or are incidental to, the ordinary course of its business. These lawsuits 
concern issues such as product liability, labour relations, property damage and personal injury. It is the Group’s policy to provide for amounts 
related to these legal matters if liability is ascertainable with reasonable certainty.

25. Interest-bearing liabilities

2005 2004
MEUR
Non-current

Book 
value Fair value Book value Fair value

Loans from fi nancial institutions 186.8 186.8 194.9 194.9
Loan from pension institutions 32.6 32.9 70.9 72.4
Finance lease liabilities 3.7 3.7 1.2 1.2
Other loans 6.3 6.3 4.2 4.2
Total 229.4 229.7 271.2 272.7

Current
Loans from fi nancial institutions 138.0 138.0 2.3 2.3
Current portion of long-term loans from 
   fi nancial institutions 5.9 5.9 9.7 9.7
Current portion of long-term loans from 
   pension institutions 25.8 26.1 31.8 32.4
Current portion of other long-term interest-
   bearing loans 0.7 0.6 0.3 0.3
Finance lease liabilities 1.4 1.4 0.7 0.7
Other liabilities 2.6 2.6 4.0 4.0
Total 174.2 174.6 48.8 49.3
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Long-term debt with maturity profi le
Bank Pension Finance Other Total

MEUR loans loans lease loans
2006 5.9 25.8 1.4 0.7 33.7
2007 12.6 17.4 1.7 6.3 38.0
2008 12.6 9.4 1.3 23.4
2009 48.3 5.2 0.2 53.7
2010 64.2 0.2 64.4
2011-> 48.9 0.5 0.3 49.8
Total 31 December 2005 192.6 58.4 5.1 7.0 263.1
Total 31 December 2004 204.6 102.7 1.9 4.4 313.7

Division of long-term loans by currency 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004
EUR 98% 87%
GBP 9%
Other currencies 2% 4%

26. Other liabilities

MEUR 2005 2004
Project costs 207.6 227.6
Personnel costs 77.6 90.0
Interest and other fi nancial items 24.2 42.2
Other accruals 76.0 70.5
Value added tax liabilities 3.0 2.1
Other liabilities 23.8 16.1
Total 412.2 448.4

Non-current 1.5 0.7
Current 410.7 447.7

Debt structure

Used Remaining Total
        

Maturity
MEUR 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Later
Committed revolving facilities 385.0 385.0 7.6 40.0 60.0 32.5 215.0 30.0
Loans from fi nancial institutions 192.6 192.6 5.9 12.6 12.6 48.3 64.2 48.9
Commercial paper programme 132.6 467.4 600.0 600.0
Total 325.2 852.4 1,177.6 613.5 52.6 72.6 80.8 279.2 78.9

The average interest rate is 3.3% and the average interest-bearing period is 51 months. At the end of 2005 a one percentage point parallel 
increase/decrease in the interest curve would have generated a EUR 6.4 (6.2) million increase/decrease in the value of the net debt portfolio 
(including interest rate derivatives).
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27. Financial instruments

The Group applies hedge accounting to signifi cant foreign currency forward contracts. 

MEUR 2005 2004

Nominal values of derivative fi nancial instruments
Interest rate swaps 180.0 260.0
Currency forwards
    Transaction risk 958.7 761.4
    Translation risk 188.8 188.6
Currency options, sold 39.2
Currency options, bought 40.3 37.8
Total 1,407.0 1,247.8

Fair values of derivative fi nancial instruments
Interest rate swaps 0.5 -1.4
Currency forwards
    Transaction risk -9.7 26.9
    Translation risk -1.9 1.9
Currency options, sold -0.2
Currency options, bought -4.1 2.2
Total -15.4 29.7

Foreign currency forward contracts fall due during the following 12 months. 
Interest rate swaps are denominated in euros and their average interest-bearing 
period is 48 months.

28. Collateral, contingent liabilities and other commitments
2005 2004

Balance  Balance  
MEUR sheet debt Collateral  sheet debt Collateral

Mortgages given as collateral for liabilities and 
commitments
   Loans from credit institutions 2.9 4.0 3.4 4.5
   Pension loans 0.7 1.0 16.5 29.8
   Off-balance-sheet commitments 10.0 9.8
Total 3.6 15.0 19.9 44.1

  
Chattel mortgages given as collateral for liabilities 
and commitments
   Loans from credit institutions 3.8 3.8 5.0 11.8
   Off-balance-sheet commitments 6.2 19.3 8.8 18.2
Total 10.0 23.1 13.8 30.0

     

  2005 2004

Guarantees and contingent liabilities on behalf 
   of Group companies 290.0 228.4

Nominal amounts of rents according to leasing contracts
   Payable within one year 10.8 9.8
   Payable after one year 26.6 27.7
Total 37.4 37.5
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29. Related party disclosures

Related parties comprise the associated companies, the Board of Directors, the President and CEO,
and the Board of Management.

Salaries and bonuses paid to management

In thousands of euro 2005 2004
President and CEO
   Salaries and other short-term benefi ts 437 363
   Bonuses 408 202

845 565

Other members of the Board of Management
   Salaries and other short-term benefi ts 1,375 1,521
   Bonuses 1,327 763

2,702 2,284

Board of Directors
   Antti Lagerroos, chairman 74 66
   Göran J. Ehrnrooth, deputy chairman 51 46
   Heikki Allonen, member 36 32
   Risto Hautamäki, member 36 33
   Jaakko Iloniemi, member 36 32
   Bertel Langenskiöld, member 34 33
   Matti Vuoria, member 34

299 243

Salaries and bonuses paid to management, total 3,846 3,092

The holdings of the President and CEO, and the members of the Board  
of Directors and Board of Management at the year end were as follows:
   Options 329,000 808,000
   Shares 72,080 75,927

Altogether 493,000 shares may be subscribed under these options, representing 0.5% 
of all the shares and 0.2% of the votes. The shares owned by management represent 0.1% 
of all the shares and 0.1% of the votes.

The President and CEO and the members of the Board of Management are entitled to retire 
on reaching 60 years of age.

The Group has no loan receivables from the executive management or the Board of Directors.
No pledges or other commitments have been given on behalf of management or shareholders.

The company has a EUR 21.2 million loan receivable from its associated company Oy Ovako Ab.

30. Exchange rates
Closing rates Average rates

31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004 2005 2004
USD 1.17970 1.36210 1.18857 1.24333
GBP 0.68530 0.70505 0.67997 0.67858
SEK 9.38853 9.02063 9.47177 9.12500
NOK 7.98499 8.23649 7.87930 8.37190
DKK 7.46052 7.43882 7.45857 7.43999
CHF 1.55510 1.54290 1.54727 1.54412
JPY 138.90817 139.64531 139.40667 134.39917
SGD 1.96280 2.22620 2.00660 2.10080
INR 53.12085 59.21014 53.79582 56.25850



WÄRTSILÄ 2005     35

31. Shares and securities

Share
%

Share 
of votes

%

 Bookvalue
000

 Directly 
owned by
the parent
company

Indirectly 
owned 

through a 
subsidiary

 

Company name and location Currency
 

Subsidiaries
Wärtsilä Technology Finland 100 100 EUR 449,064
Wärtsilä Finland Oy Finland 100 100 EUR 109,027
Wärtsilä Operations & Maintenance Ltd Oy Finland 100 100 EUR 84
Wärtsilä Nederland  B.V. The Netherlands 100 100 EUR 141,400
Ciserv Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands 100 100 EUR 956
Ciserv Europoort Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands 100 100 EUR 3,045
Wärtsilä Italia S.p.A. Italy 100 100 EUR 83,447
Wärtsilä Switzerland Ltd. Switzerland 100 100 EUR 6,950
Wärtsilä France S.A.S. France 100 100 EUR 20,000
Wärtsilä Lips Defence S.A. France 100 100 EUR 3,097
Wärtsilä Propulsion Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands 100 100 EUR 151,989
Wärtsilä Propulsion Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100 EUR 28
Wärtsilä-CME Zhenjiang Propeller Co. Ltd China 55 55 EUR 3,826
Wärtsilä Propulsion (Wuxi) Co. Ltd. China 100 100 EUR 3,391
Wärtsilä Propulsion Spain S.A. Spain 100 100 EUR 771
Wärtsilä Danmark A/S Denmark 100 100 EUR 9,631
Ciserv Denmark A/S Denmark 100 100 DKK 41,237
Wärtsilä Sweden AB Sweden 100 100 DKK 150,407
Ciserv AB Sweden 100 100 SEK 41,318
Wärtsilä  Norway A/S Norway 100 100 EUR 10,079
Wärtsilä Propulsion Norway A/S Norway 100 100 NOK 110,345
Wärtsilä Ibérica S.A. Spain 100 100 EUR 3,875
Wärtsilä Portugal Lda. Portugal 100 100 EUR 222
Wärtsilä Deutschland GmbH Germany 100 100 EUR 507
Oü Ciserv BLRT Baltica Estonia 51.7 51.7 EUR 20
Deep Sea Seals Ltd Great Britain 100 100 EUR 81,745
Wärtsilä UK Ltd. Great Britain 100 100 EUR 5,393
Wärtsilä Ireland Ltd. Ireland 100 100 GBP 10
Wärtsilä Polska Sp.z.o.o. Poland 100 100 EUR 547
Wärtsilä Greece S.A. Greece 100 100 EUR 369
Wärtsilä-Enpa A.S. Turkey 51 51 EUR 69
Wärtsilä Arab Mediterranean Power Ltd Egypt 100 100 EUR 37
Wärtsilä Lips Inc. USA 100 100 USD 42,336
Wärtsilä North America, Inc. USA 100 100 USD 81,477
Ciserv USA Inc. USA 100 100 USD 800
Wärtsilä Development & Financial Services Inc. USA 100 100 USD 10,216
Wärtsilä Canada Inc. Canada 100 100 USD 2,439
Ciserv CGL Industries Ltd. Canada 100 100 CAD 512
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Shares and securities

Share
%

Share 
of votes

%

 Bookvalue
’000

 Directly 
owned by
the parent
company

Indirectly
owned  

through a 
subsidiary

 

Company name and location  Currency

Wärtsilä de Mexico SA Mexico 100 100 USD 9,709
Wärtsilä Caribbean, Inc. Puerto Rico 100 100 USD
Wärtsilä Dominicana, Inc. Dominican Republic 100 100 USD 20
Wärtsilä Guatemala S.A. Guatemala 100 100 USD 1
Wartsila Operations, Inc. USA 100 100 USD 10
Wärtsilä Latin America Ltd. Bermuda 100 100 EUR 5,800
Wärtsilä Chile Ltda. Chile 100 100 USD 2,798
Wärtsilä Ecuador S.A. Ecuador 100 100 USD 1,991
Wärtsilä do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 100 100 USD 8,807
Wärtsilä Colombia S.A. Colombia 100 100 USD 35
Wärtsilä Peru S.A. Peru 100 100 USD 1,307
Wärtsilä Argentina S.A. Argentina 100 100 USD 896
Wärtsilä Venezuela, C.A. Venezuela 100 100 USD 1,771
Wärtsilä Bolivia S.A. Bolivia 100 100 USD
Wärtsilä Development & Financial Services Oy Finland 100 100 EUR 18,800
Wärtsilä Singapore Pte Ltd. Singapore 100 100 EUR 3,151
Ciserv Singapore Pte Ltd. Singapore 100 100 SGD 5,000
Wärtsilä China Ltd. Hong Kong 100 100 EUR 9,010
Ciserv China Ltd. Hong Kong 100 100 HKD 1
Wärtsilä Korea Ltd. South Korea 100 100 EUR 894
Ciserv Korea Ltd South Korea 100 100 EUR 37
Wärtsilä Taiwan Ltd. Taiwan 96.7 96.7 EUR 401
Wärtsilä Philippines Inc. Philippines 100 100 EUR 645
PT. Wärtsilä Indonesia Indonesia 100 100 EUR 10,289
Wärtsilä Australia Pty Ltd. Australia 100 100 EUR 1,689
Wärtsilä India Ltd. India 89.6 89.6 EUR 25,661
Wärtsilä Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd. Pakistan 100 100 EUR 3,713
Wärtsilä Bangladesh Ltd. Bangladesh 100 100 EUR 96
Wärtsilä Power Contracting Saudi Arabia Ltd. Saudi Arabia 60 60 EUR 716
Wärtsilä Gulf FZE United Arab Emirates 100 100 EUR 213
Ciserv UAE LLC United Arab Emirates 49 100 AED 147
Wärtsilä South Africa (Pty) Ltd. South Africa 100 100 EUR 316
Wärtsilä Eastern Africa Ltd Kenya 100 100 EUR 15
Wärtsilä West Africa S.A. Senegal 100 100 EUR 15
Wärtsilä Japan Company Ltd Japan 100 100 EUR 2,261
Japan Marine Technologies Ltd Japan 99.6 99.6 EUR 60,768
Chuwac Engineering Pte Ltd Singapore 99.6 99.6 JPY 39,113
Wärtsilä CIS Ltd. Russia 100 100 EUR 858
Vulcan Insurance Ltd. Great Britain 100 100 EUR 336
Wärtsilä Oyj Abp, other subsidiaries (4) 16
Wärtsilä Oyj Abp, real estate companies (4) 301
Total 449,717
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Share
%

Share 
of votes

%

  

Bookvalue
’000

 Directly 
owned by
the parent
company

Indirectly
owned

through a
subsidiary

Shares and securities
 

Company name and location Currency

Associated companies
Oy Ovako Ab Finland 26.5 26.5 EUR 69,815
AWEK Industrial Patents Ltd. Oy Finland 25 25 EUR 17
Wartsila Navim Diesel S.r.l. Italy 40 40 EUR 13
Repropel Sociedad de reparacao de helices LDA Portugal 50 50 EUR 80
Wärtsilä Corporation, others Finland 15
Total 69,829

 
Other companies
Assa Abloy AB (publ.) Sweden 4.7 3.2 EUR 27,649
Sampo Oyj Finland 0.3 EUR 3,798
Sato Yhtymä Oyj Finland EUR 1,853
Wärtsilä Corporation, others (23) 3,197
Total 36,497

Wärtsilä Corporation, shares and securities totat 556,043

32. Financial risks

Risk management principles

Risk management in Wärtsilä is a continuous process of analysing and managing all the opportunities, threats and risks faced by the company 
to achieve its goals and to ensure the company remains a going concern. The basis for risk management is the quality of Wärtsilä’s operations 
and products, and the continuous, systematic loss-prevention work at all the levels of the Group on the principle that “everybody is responsi-
ble”. In the long term this is the only way to reduce the total risk costs.  The Wärtsilä Businesses are responsible for their operational risks and 
for mitigating and covering them.  The risk management function is subordinate to Group Treasury, which reports to the CFO. It reviews the 
business risk profi le, prepares the risk management policy, and develops global and local insurance schemes with insurance companies and 
brokers. The risk management policy is endorsed by the Board of Directors.

Financial risks

Wärtsilä has a centralized Group Treasury with two main objectives. It arranges adequate funding for the Group’s underlying operations on 
competitive terms. The Treasury also identifi es and evaluates the fi nancial risks within the Group and implements the hedges for the Group 
companies.  The objective is to hedge against unfavourable changes in the fi nancial markets and to minimize the impact of foreign exchange, 
interest rate, credit and liquidity risks on the Group’s cash reserves, profi ts and shareholders’ equity.  The Financial Risk Policy is approved by 
the Board of Directors. The Treasury employs only such instruments whose market value and risk profi le can be reliably monitored.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange exposures are monitored at the Business level and then netted and hedged at Group level. All fi xed sales and purchase 
contracts are hedged on a net basis. The estimated future commercial exposures are evaluated by the Businesses and the level of hedging 
is decided by the Board of Management. Hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS is applied to most of the hedges of these exposures. 
The hedges cover such time periods that both the prices and costs can be adjusted to new exchange rates. These periods vary among 
Group companies from one month to two years. The Group also hedges its balance sheet position, which includes receivables and payables 
denominated in foreign currencies.

Some 59% of sales and 65% of operating costs in 2005 were denominated in euros. The Group’s profi ts and competitiveness are also 
indirectly affected by the home currencies of its main competitors: USD, GBP, JPY and KRW. The instruments, and their nominal values, used 
to nedge the Group’s foreign exchange exposures are listed in the note 27.
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Liquidity and refi nancing risk

Wärtsilä ensures suffi cient liquidity at all times by effi cient cash management and by keeping large enough committed and uncommitted credit 
lines available.

The existing funding programmes include:
• Committed Revolving Credit Facilities totalling EUR 385 million
• Finnish Commercial Paper programmes totalling EUR 600 million

The average maturity of the long-term loans is 51 months and the average maturity of the confi rmed credit lines is 56 months.

Wärtsilä Group’s liquidity is good. Wärtsilä had cash reserves totalling EUR 119.6 million at the year end as well as EUR 385 million in non-
utilized committed credit facilities and substantial Commercial Paper programmes. Wärtsilä minimizes its refi nancing risk by having a balanced 
and suffi ciently long loan portfolio.  Information on the Group’s loans is given in Note 25.

Credit risk

The responsibility for managing the credit risks associated with ordinary commercial activities lies with the Businesses and the Group 
companies. Major trade and project fi nance credit risks are minimized by transferring risks to banks, insurance companies and export credit 
organizations The company’s long-term suppliers’ credits granted mainly into emerging markets totalled EUR 3.8 million at the end of 2005. 
No losses were recorded on suppliers’ credits. Credit risks related to the placement of liquid funds and to trading in fi nancial instruments are 
minimized by setting explicit limits for the counterparties and by making agreements only with the most reputable domestic and international 
banks and fi nancial institutions. The Group companies deposit all their liquid fi nancial assets with the centralized treasury (Wärtsilä Finance) if 
local laws and control bank regulations allow it. The Group’s funds are placed in instruments with suffi cient liquidity (short-term bank deposits 
or Finnish Commercial Papers) and rating (at least single-A rated instruments or other instruments approved by the Group CFO). These place-
ments are constantly monitored by Wärtsilä Finance and Wärtsilä does not expect any defaults from the placements.

Equity price risk

Wärtsilä has investments in publicly quoted shares (Note 31). The market value of these shares at the end of 2005 was EUR 258 million. Wärt-
silä holds 26.5% of the shares in Oy Ovako Ab (Note 13). The company also has equity investments totalling EUR 33 million in power plant 
companies, most of which are located in developing countries and performing well according to expectations.

Currency distribution 2005 Net sales Operating
cost

Euro zone 59% 65%
USD 18% 11%
NOK 2% 3%
CHF 2% 4%
SEK 2% 1%
Other EU 3% 5%
Other 14% 10%

100% 100%

The distribution of the Group’s sales and operating expenses by currency provides a view of the Group’s long-term currency sensitivity.

Since Wärtsilä has subsidiaries outside the euro zone, the Group’s shareholders’ equity is sensitive to exchange rate fl uctuations. At the end 
of 2005 the net asset value of Wärtsilä’s foreign subsidiaries outside the euro zone totalled EUR 237 million, of which EUR 187 million was 
hedged.

Interest rate risk

Wärtsilä is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through market value changes to the net debt portfolio (price risk) and also through changes 
in interest rates (re-fi xing on rollovers). Wärtsilä hedges interest rate exposure by using derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps, fu-
tures and options. Changes in the market value of these derivatives are booked direct to the Income Statement. Interest rate risk is managed 
by constantly monitoring the market value of the fi nancial instruments and by using sensitivity analysis.

Interest-bearing loan capital at the end of 2005 totalled EUR 403 (320) million. The average interest rate was 3.0% (3.4%) and the average 
re-fi xing time 7 (12) months. At the end of 2005 a one percentage point parallel decrease/increase of the yield curve would have resulted in a 
EUR 6.4 million increase/decrease in the value of the net debt portfolio inclusive derivatives. Wärtsilä spreads its interest rate risk exposure by 
taking both fi xed and fl oating rate loans. The share of fl oating rate loans as a proportion of the total debt can vary between 30 – 70%. At the 
end of 2005 the fl oating rate portion of total loans was 62% after adjustment for interest rate derivatives.
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33. Adoption of the International Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Wärtsilä Corporation has adopted the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in the preparation and presentation of its interim and 
annual fi nancial statements as of 1 January 2005. Described below are the main impacts of the transition to IFRS on the fi nancial information 
for 2004, which was originally reported according to the Finnish Accounting Standards (FAS) set for public listed companies in Finland. 

Under the transition provisions for IAS 32 and IAS 39 covering the treatment of fi nancial instruments, no comparative data need be prepared 
according to these standards for 2004. Instead, IAS 32 and IAS 39 have been applied from 1 January 2005, when the translation adjustments 
were entered directly under shareholders’ equity.

The main changes arising from the adoption of IFRS are explained below.

INCOME STATEMENT
FAS IFRS IFRS

MEUR 2004 adjustment 2004

Net sales 2,478.2 2,478.2
Other operating income 135.2 -108.3 26.9
Expenses -2,289.5 -40.6 -2,330.1
Depreciations and write-downs -58.1 -5.0 -63.0
Operating income before goodwill amortization 265.8 -153.8 112.0
Goodwill amortization -27.4 27.4
Operating income 238.4 -126.4 112.0
Share of income from associates 1.4 1.4

Net income from assets available for sale 107.7 107.7
Financial income and expenses -3.3 -0.5 -3.7
Income before taxes 236.5 -19.1 217.3
Income taxes  -74.9 -11.1 -86.1
Minority interests -1.3 -1.3
Net income 160.3 -30.3 130.0

Earnings per share 1.75 1.42
Diluted earnings per share 1.75 1.42

OPERATING INCOME BY SEGMENT
FAS IFRS IFRS

MEUR 2004 adjustment 2004
Power Businesses 137.5 -49.8 87.7
Imatra Steel 20.5 3.8 24.3
Investments available for sale 107.7 -107.7
Total 265.8 -153.8 112.0
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BALANCE SHEET
FAS IFRS IFRS

MEUR 31 Dec. 2003 adjustment 31 Dec. 2003
Assets
Intangible assets 37.3 19.0 56.3
Goodwill 354.0 4.6 358.6
Property, plant and equipment 389.3 -18.9 370.5
Investment properties 20.7 20.7
Equity in associates 2.7 2.7
Shares available for sales 96.8 -0.3 96.5
Interest-bearing investments 11.5 11.5
Other long-term receivables 70.3 34.5 104.7
Inventories 555.5 0.2 555.7
Interest-bearing receivables 9.7 0.0 9.6
Other receivables 705.8 6.4 712.2
Cash and cash equivalents 150.0 1.5 151.5
Total assets 2,382.9 67.5 2,450.4
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Share capital 208.8 208.8
Other shareholders’ equity 568.3 69.0 637.3
Minority interests 6.1 6.1
Convertible subordinated debentures 27.5 27.5
Long-term interest-bearing debt 288.2 0.5 288.7
Other long-term liabilities 101.1 42.3 143.4
Interest-bearing current debt 208.6 10.5 219.1
Other current liabilities 974.2 -54.7 919.5
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 2,382.9 67.5 2,450.4

BALANCE SHEET
FAS IFRS IFRS

MEUR 31 Dec. 2004 adjustment 31 Dec. 2004
Assets
Intangible assets 56.8 19.4 76.2
Goodwill 328.3 31.3 359.6
Property, plant and equipment 355.7 -13.0 342.8
Investment properties 14.2 14.2
Equity in associates 2.8 2.8
Shares available for sales 68.7 -0.3 68.4
Interest-bearing investments 6.9 0.0 6.9
Other long-term receivables 59.0 22.2 81.2
Inventories 564.5 0.6 565.1
Interest-bearing receivables 1.9 0.0 1.9
Other receivables 713.5 -4.8 708.7
Cash and cash equivalents 168.5 1.1 169.6
Total assets 2,326.7 70.7 2,397.3
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Share capital 323.9 323.9
Other shareholders’ equity 529.0 39.8 568.8
Minority interests 7.8 7.8
Long-term interest-bearing debt 271.0 0.3 271.2
Other long-term liabilities 87.6 21.4 109.0
Interest-bearing current debt 48.5 0.2 48.8
Other current liabilities 1,058.8 9.0 1,067.8
Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 2,326.7 70.7 2,397.3
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ANALYSIS OF NET INCOME ADJUSTMENTS

MEUR 2004

Net income under FAS 160.3

IFRS adjustments
   IFRS 3 Business combinations 27.4
   IAS 12 Income Taxes -11.6
   IAS 19 Employee Benefi ts 20.4
   IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants 1.4
   IAS 37 Provisions -67.2
   IAS 38 Intangible assets -0.1
   Other adjustments -0.6
Total IFRS adjustments -30.3

Net income under IFRS 130.0

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

MEUR 31 Dec. 2003 31 Dec. 2004

Shareholders’ equity under FAS 777.1 853.0

Effects of adopting IFRS

IFRS 3 Business combinations 27.4
   IAS 12 Income taxes 28.4 16.8
   IAS 19 Employee benefi ts -40.7 -20.3
   IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants -10.0 -8.7
   IAS 36 Impairment of Assets -3.4 -3.4
   IAS 37 Provisions 67.1 -0.1
   IAS 38 Intangible Assets 27.0 26.9
   Other adjustments 0.6 1.1
Total IFRS adjustments 69.0 39.8

Shareholders’ equity under IFRS 846.1 892.7

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share Share Translation Retained

MEUR capital premium differences earnings Total
Shareholders’ equity 
   on 31 December 2003 (FAS 208.8 117.9 -19.3 469.8 777.1
IFRS adjustments 19.3 49.7 69.0
Shareholders’ equity on 
   1 January 2004 (IFRS) 208.8 117.9 0.0 519.5 846.1
Conversion of subordinated debentures 7.2 17.5 24.6
Bonus issue 108.0 -108.0 0.0
Translation differences -1.0 -1.0
Dividends paid -106.4 -106.4
Other changes -0.6 -0.6
Net income for the period 130.0 130.0
Shareholders’ equity on 
   31 December 2004 (IFRS) 323.9 27.3 -1.0 542.5 892.7

KEY FIGURES 2004                        
FAS IFRS

Earnings per share, EUR 1.75 1.42
Book value of equity per share, EUR 9.22 9.65
Solvency % 40.3 40.8
Net debt to equity 0.18 0.17
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Employee benefi ts

Under FAS pension obligations were reported in accordance with local legislation and practice in each operating country. The adoption of IFRS 
increases the pension obligation arising from defi ned benefi t plans by EUR 32.7 million in the opening balance sheet at 1 January 2004. Most 
of this increase is due to the need to enter the disability pension obligation under the Finnish pension system (Employees’ Pensions Act, TEL) 
in the opening balance sheet at 1 January 2004. Changes in the system’s calculation principles, due to come into force on 1 January 2006, 
will mean that a one-time item of EUR 27.3 million arising from the disability pension is entered in the fourth-quarter interim accounts for 2004. 
Under the new calculation principles the disability part of TEL pensions will be treated as a defi ned contribution plan in the IFRS statements.

The other employee benefi t obligations on the transition date total EUR 8.0 million. These apply mainly to compensation for long-term employ-
ment in the company. Under previous local practice, these obligations were not included in provisions because they were previously treated as 
defi ned contribution plans.

Interest-bearing loans

The EUR 10.0 million conditional state development credit granted in the Netherlands is treated under IFRS as an interest-bearing loan. Under 
FAS it was entered as a contingent liability.

Goodwill

On the transition date 1 January 2004 goodwill totalling EUR 362.0 million was reviewed for each cash-generating unit to determine any need 
for write-downs, based on discounted future cash fl ows. The review resulted in a EUR 3.4 million write-down on the Biopower business. 
Biopower was part of the Power Plants business and under FAS valuation principles no write-down was considered necessary in the 2003 
fi nancial statements.

Goodwill totalling EUR 8.1 million arising from the acquisition of assets has been transferred from intangible assets to goodwill. Goodwill has 
not been amortized from the transition date. Amortization of goodwill under FAS in 2004, EUR 27.4 million, is entered in the income statement. 

Restructuring provisions

A EUR 130 million restructuring provision and write-down was entered in the FAS fi nancial statements for 2003 based on a restructuring pro-
gramme approved by the Board of Directors in December 2003. Negotiations with personnel were completed during the fi rst quarter of 2004 
and it was only then that the IFRS criteria for provisions were considered to have been met. Accordingly, EUR 66.0 million of the restructuring 
provision at the transition date, 1 January 2004, has been reversed. Of this amount, EUR 63.8 million has been entered as a provision and 
one-time item in the fi rst-quarter accounts for 2004. The provision was increased by EUR 2.1 million in the fourth quarter after completion of 
the restructuring programme in the Netherlands.

Capitalization of R&D costs

The research and development costs of new products and technologies have been capitalized, once the IAS capitalization criteria have been 
met, from the year in which it has been possible to establish their technical feasibility and future economic benefi ts. Development costs total-
ling EUR 27.0 million between 1999 and 2003 were capitalized on 1 January 2004 after deductions for planned depreciation.

Assets available for sale

Other shares are classifi ed as assets available for sale. Under the transition exemptions permitted by the IAS 32 and IAS 39 standards on 
fi nancial instruments, comparative IFRS fi gures for fi nancial instruments are not calculated since IAS 39 only took effect on 1 January 2005. 
Hence the IFRS values of Wärtsilä’s shares shown here correspond with the fi gures in the original fi nancial statements. Application of IAS 39 to 
Wärtslä’s shares available for sale would have increased the opening balance sheet by EUR 146.9 million.

Valuation of inventories

Further clarifi cation of the valuation principles has been provided. The main impact of the change is to systematically include freight and cash 
discounts in inventories.

Tangible fi xed assets

The value of tangible fi xed assets has increased as a result of more systematic fi nance leasing capitalization and the consolidation of small 
companies. Under FAS these small companies were not considered signifi cant.

Properties totalling EUR 20.7 million and not used by the Group have been transferred to investment properties.  The fair value for the invest-
ment properties is not available.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes have been entered under IFRS adjustments in the opening balance sheet to the extent that they have created taxable or tax-
deductible temporary differences between the closing of the accounts and the taxation date. Deferred tax assets on confi rmed losses have 
been adjusted if it is suffi ciently probable that the losses can be used in the future. Deferred tax adjustments at the transition date totalled 
EUR 28.4 million.
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEUR Note 2005 2004

Net sales 1 1.6 8.9

Other operating income 2 51.2 160.0

Personnel expenses 3 -28.8 -22.4
Depreciation and write-downs 4 -9.6 -9.2
Other operating expenses -68.9 -59.8

Operating result -54.6 77.4

Financial income and expenses 5
Income from fi nancial assets 6.5 10.4
Interest income and other 
   fi nancial income 21.5 22.3
Exchange gains and losses -13.2 8.4
Interest expenses and other 
   fi nancial expenses -25.8 -14.1

-10.9 27.0

Result before extraordinary items -65.5 104.4

Extraordinary items 6
Group contribution 73.8 -13.3

Result before appropriations 
   and taxes 8.3 91.2

Appropriations
Change in depreciation difference 0.4 1.9

Result before taxes 8.7 93.0

Income taxes 7 -1.4 -27.2
Result for the fi nancial period 7.3 65.8

Parent Company Balance Sheet (FAS)
ASSETS
MEUR Note 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004

Fixed assets 8

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 0.4 0.4
Other long-term expenditure 27.7 25.3
Construction in progress 7.9 8.0

36.0 33.7

Tangible assets
Land and water 9.9 14.3
Buildings and structures 1.2 5.2
Machinery and equipment 1.8 2.6
Other tangible assets 0.7 0.8
Construction in progress 2.3 0.2

16.0 23.1

Financial assets
Shares in Group companies 449.7 528.5
Long-term loan receivables 
   from Group companies 3.1 3.6
Shares in associated 
   companies 69.8 0.0
Receivables from associated 
   companies 1.5 2.2
Other shares and securities 36.5 36.3
Other receivables 0.0 0.0

560.7 570.5

Fixed assets and other 
long-term fi nancial assets 612.7 627.3

Long-term receivables 9
Receivables from Group 
   companies 20.5 12.9
Receivables from associated
   companies 21.2
Loan receivables 2.0 2.6

43.7 15.5

Short-term receivables 10
Trade receivables 0.2 8.8
Receivables from Group 
   companies 676.5 661.0
Receivables from associated 
   companies 0.7 0.1
Loan receivables 0.4 0.4
Other receivables 9.7 5.4
Prepaid expenses and accrued
   income 11 10.3 9.2

697.8 684.9

Financial assets
Other securities 4.2 3.7

4.2 3.7

Cash and bank balances 34.3 89.7

Total current assets 780.1 793.8

Assets 1,392.8 1,421.1

Parent Company Income Statement (FAS)
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Parent Company Balance Sheet (FAS)
Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
MEUR Note 31 Dec. 2005 31 Dec. 2004

Shareholders’ equity 12

Share capital 329.4 323.9
Share premium reserve 44.0 27.3
Retained earnings 444.6 464.9
Result for the fi nancial year 7.3 65.8
Total shareholders’ equity 825.3 882.0

Accumulated appropriations
Depreciation difference 2.5 2.9

Provisions 13 2.5 2.5

Liabilities
Long-term 14
Loans from credit institutions 169.0 148.4
Pension loans 29.0 53.7

198.0 202.1

Current 16
Loans from credit institutions 132.6
Pension loans 24.7 28.4
Trade payables 2.9 0.7
Liabilities to Group companies 172.4 264.6
Liabilities to associated 
   companies 0.0
Other current liabilities 1.5 2.7
Accrued expenses and 
   deferred income 15 30.3 35.2

364.5 331.6

Total liabilities 562.4 533.7

Shareholders’ equity and 
   liabilities 1,392.8 1,421.1

Parent Company Cash Flow Statement (FAS)
MEUR 2005 2004

Cash fl ow from operating activities:

Operating result -54.6 77,4
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and write-downs 9.6 9.2
Selling profi t and loss of fi xed assets -11.9 -126.9
Other changes -4.1
Cash fl ow before changes in working
   capital -60.9 -40.3

Changes in working capital
Current assets, non-interest-bearing, 
   increase (-) / decrease (+) 6.6 8,8
Current liabilities, non-interest-bearing, 
   increase (+) / decrease (-) 16.9 1.8

23.5 10.6

Cash fl ow from operating activities 
before fi nancial items and taxes -37.5 -29.6

Interest and other fi nancial expenses -40.3 -26.5
Dividends received from operating activities 0.1 2.7
Interest and other fi nancial income from 
   operating activities 35.6 40.9
Income taxes -23.6 -6.0

-28.2 11.1

Cash fl ow from operating activities (A) -65.6 -18.6

Cash fl ow from investing activities:

Investments in shares -24.0 -0.3
Investments in other tangible and 
   intangible assets -12.9 -10.7
Proceeds from sale of shares 1.2 134.8
Proceeds from sale of tangible and 
   intangible assets 16.6 6.8
Loan receivables, 
   increase (-), decrease (+) 1.1 3.7
Dividends received from investments 6.4 7.7
Paid income taxes on sales of shares -0.1 -7.8
Cash fl ow from investing activities (B) -11.8 134.3

Cash fl ow after investing activities -77.4 115.7

Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities:

Issuance of share capital 22.1 24.6
Loans receivable, increase (-) / decrease (+) -50.7 105.1
Current loans, increase (+) / decrease (-) 86.5 -112.8
New long-term loans 49.0 30.0
Amortization and other changes to 
   long-term loans -58.3 -26.8
Group contributions 57.3 16.2
Paid dividends -83.3 -106.4
Changes in convertible subordinate 
   debentures -27.5
Other changes -0.4
Cash fl ow from fi nancing activities (C) 22.6 -98.0

Change in liquid funds  (A)+(B)+(C), 
   increase (+) / decrease (-) -54.8 17.7

Liquid funds at beginning of period 93.3 75.6
Liquid funds at end of period 38.5 93.3
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR THE PARENT COMPANY

Accounting principles
Th e fi nancial statements of the parent 
company, Wärtsilä Corporation, have 
been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Finnish Companies 
Act. 

Th e accounting principles are un-
changed compared to the previous 
year.

Th e preparation of the fi nancial 
statements requires management, in 
compliance with the regulations in 
force and good accounting practice, to 
make estimates and assumptions that 
aff ect the measurement and timing of 
the reported information. Actual results 
may diff er from these estimates.

Transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies
Business transactions in foreign curren-
cies are recorded at the rates of exchange 
prevailing on the transaction date. Re-
ceivables and payables on the balance 
sheet date are valued at the exchange 
rates prevailing on that date. Open 
hedging instruments of foreign curren-
cy based items, including interest com-
ponents, are valued at the balance sheet 
date. Exchange gains and losses related 
to business operations are treated as ad-
justments to net sales and operating ex-
penses. Exchange gains and losses relat-
ed to fi nancing operations are entered 
under fi nancial income and expenses.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are ex-
pensed in the fi nancial period in which 
they occur.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are valued in the balance 
sheet at their direct acquisition cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Certain land  
also include revaluations. 

Depreciation is based on the follow-
ing useful lives:
Other long-term 
expenditure 3 – 10 years
Buildings               20 – 40 years
Machinery and 
equipment  5 – 20 years

Leasing
Operating lease payments are treated as 
rentals. 

Extraordinary income and expenses
Extraordinary income and expenses 
consist of items, such as Group contri-
butions, that fall outside the ordinary 
activities of the company.

Provisions
Provisions in the balance sheet com-
prise those items which the company is 
committed to covering either through 
agreements or otherwise, but which are 
not yet realized. Changes to provisions 
are included in the income statement. 

Income taxes
Income taxes in the income statement 
include taxes calculated for the fi nan-
cial year based on Finnish tax provi-
sions, as well as adjustments to taxes in 
prior years. Taxes allocated to extraordi-
nary items are shown in the notes to the 
fi nancial statements.

Dividends
Dividends proposed by the Board of 
Directors are not recorded in the fi nan-
cial statements until they have been ap-
proved by the Annual General Meet-
ing. 
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements (FAS)

MEUR 2005 2004

1. Net sales by country 
Finland 1.6 8.9

2. Other operating income

Rental income 1.8 1.9
Profi t on sales of fi xed assets 11.9 127.1
Other operating income 37.4 30.9
Total 51.2 160.0

3. Personnel expenses

Wages and salaries 19.2 14.4
Pension costs 7.6 6.3
Other compulsory personnel costs 2.0 1.8
Total 28.8 22.4

Salaries and emoluments to senior management,
the President and CEO and members of the Board of Directors 1.0 0.9

The CEO and the members of the Board of Management have the right to retire at the age 
of 60 years.

The Company’s Board of Directors decides the remunerations of the President and CEO and 
his immediate subordinates.

Personnel on average 251 219

4. Depreciation and write-downs

Depreciation according to plan

Intangible assets 0.1 0.1
Other long-term expenditure 7.9 7.4
Buildings and structures 0.5 0.6
Machinery and equipment 1.2 1.2
Other tangible assets 0.0 0.0
Total depreciation according to plan 9.6 9.2
Total book depreciation 9.3 7.3
Depreciation difference 0.4 1.9
Adjustment of depreciation difference on sold fi xed assets 0.7 1.9

Write-down of fi xed assets

Depreciation difference on 1 January 2.9 4.8
Change in the depreciation difference -0.4 -1.9
Depreciation difference on 31 December 2.5 2.9
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MEUR 2005 2004

5. Financial income and expenses

Dividend income
   from Group companies 0.1 2.7
   from other companies 6.4 7.7
Total 6.5 10.4

Other interest income 
   from Group companies 19.8 19.4
   from other companies 1.1 2.1
Total 20.9 21.5

Other fi nancial income
   from Group companies 0.6 0.8
   from other companies 4.0
Total 4.6 0.8

Exchange gains and losses -13.2 8.4

Interest expenses
   to Group companies -0.8 -3.7
   to other companies -11.1 -8.2
Total -11.9 -12.0

Other fi nancial expenses
   to other companies -17.8 -2.2
Total -17.8 -2.2

Financial income and expenses, total -10.9 27.0

6. Extraordinary income and expenses

Group contributions 73.8 -13.3

7. Income taxes

Income taxes on operations
   for the fi nancial year -1.4 -27.2
   for prior years 0.0 0.0
Total -1.4 -27.2

Income taxes on extraordinary items 19,2 -3.9

8. Fixed assets 

Intangible assets
Intangible

rights

Other 
long-term 

expenditure
Construction 

in progressMEUR Total 2005 Total 2004 
Acquisition cost at 1 January 0.9 55.8 8.0 64.2 57.2
Additions 4.2 6.1 10.3 8.5
Disposals -1.5
Intra-balance sheet transfer 6.2 -6.2
Acquisition cost at 31 December 0.9 66.2 7.9 74.5 64.2

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January -0.5 -30.5 -30.5 -23.5
Accumulated depreciation on disposals and transfers 0.5
Depreciation during the fi nancial year -0.1 -7.9 -8.0 -7.4
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December -0.5 -38.4 -38.5 -30.5

Book value at 31 December 2005 0.4 27.7 7.9 36.0
Book value at 31 December 2004 0.4 25.3 8.0 33.7
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Tangible assets Buildings 
and 

structures 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Construc-
tion in 

progress

Other 
tangible 

assets MEUR
Land and 

water
Total

 2005
Total 
2004

Acquisition cost at 1 January 14.3 22.7 11.9 0.2 1.6 50.7 56.3
Additions 0.0 0.5 2.2 2.6 2.2
Disposals -4.4 -10.6 -0.8 0.0 -15.9 -7.8
Acquisition cost at 31 December 9.9 12.2 11.5 2.3 1.6 37.4 50.7

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January -17.5 -9.3 -0.8 -27.7 -29.3
Accumulated depreciation on disposals 
   and transfers 7.1 0.8 7.9 3.4
Depreciation during the fi nancial year -0.5 -1.2 0.0 -1.7 -1.8
Accumulated depreciation at 
   31 December -10.9 -9.7 -0.8 -21.5 -27.7

Book value at 31 December 2005 9.9 1.2 1.8 2.3 0.7 16.0
Book value at 31 December 2004 14.3 5.2 2.6 0.2 0.8 23.1

Shares and securities 
Shares 

in  Group 
companies

Receiva-
bles from 

Group 
companies

Shares in  
associated 
companies

Receiva-
bles from  

associated 
companies

Shares in  
other 

companies

Receiva-
bles from  

other 
companies

Total
2005

Total
 2004

Acquisition cost at 1 January 528.5 3.6 0.0 2.2 36.3 0.0 570.5 588.6
Exchange rate differences -0.7 -0.7
Additions 69.8 0.8 70.6 0.3
Disposals -78.7 -0.5 -0.6 -79.8 -18.4
Acquisition cost at 31 December 449.7 3.1 69.8 1.5 36.5 0.0 560.7 570.5

Book value at 31 December 2005 449.7 3.1 69.8 1.5 36.5 0.0 560.7
Book value at 31 December 2004 528.5 3.6 0.0 2.2 36.3 0.0 570.5

9. Specifi cation of long-term receivables

MEUR 2005 2004
Receivables from group companies
Long-term investments 3.1 3.6
Loan receivables 20.5 12.9
Total 23.6 16.5

Receivables from associated companies
Long-term investments 1.5 2.2
Loan receivables 21.2
Total 22.7 2.2

10. Specifi cation of short-term receivables

Receivables from Group companies
Trade receivables 6.2 6.7
Loan receivables 659.6 653.1
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 10.7 1.3
Total 676.5 661.0

Receivables from associated companies
Trade receivables 0.0 0.1
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 0.7
Total 0.7 0.1

11. Main items in prepaid expenses and accrued income

Interest 0.6 3.2
Other fi nancial items 2.0 3.7
Income and other taxes 6.2
Other items 1.5 2.2
Total 10.3 9.2
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MEUR 2005 2004

12. Shareholders’ equity

Share capital
Share capital on 1 January 
Series A 82.5 54.0
Series B 241.4 154.8
Total 323.9 208.8

Subscription based on warrants 5.4
Conversion of debentures 7.2
Share issue 108.0
Total 5.4 115.2

Share capital on 31 December 
Series A 82.5 82.5
Series B 246.8 241.4
Total 329.4 323.9

Share premium reserve
Share premium reserve on 1 January 27.3 117.9
Share issue -108.0
Issue premium 16.7 17.5
Share premium reserve on 31 December 44.0 27.3

Retained earnings
Retained earnings on 1 January 530.8 572.9
Ordinary dividend distribution -41.6 -44.7
Extra dividend distribution -41.6 -61.7
Reversal of revaluation -2.8 -1.5
Profi t/loss for the year 7.3 65.8
Retained earnings on 31 December 451.9 530.8

Distributable equity
Retained earnings on 31 December 451.9 530.8
Distributable equity 451.9 530.8

13. Provisions

Other provisions 2.5 2.5

Provisions total 2.5 2.5
Change in provisions - -

  
14. Liabilities

Long-term
Non-interest-bearing 0.0
Interest-bearing 198.0 202.1
Total 198.0 202.1

Current 
Non-interest-bearing 39.6 58.4
Interest-bearing 324.8 273.2
Total 364.5 331.6

NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Long-term debt with maturity profi le

MEUR Bank loans Pension loans Total 
2006 24.7 24.7
2007 7.1 16.4 23.5
2008 7.1 8.4 15.5
2009 42.8 4.2 47.0
2010 -> 111.9 111.9
Total 31 December 2005 169.0 53.7 222.7
Total 31 December 2004 148.4 82.1 230.5

15. Main items in accrued expenses and deferred income

MEUR 2005 2004
Income and other taxes 0.2 16.3
Personnel costs 7.3 3.6
Interest and other fi nancial items 19.9 11.5
Other 3.0 3.8
Total 30.3 35.2

16. Specifi cation of current liabilities

Liabilities to Group companies
Trade payables 4.8 5.5
Other current liabilities 167.6 259.1
Total 172.4 264.6

Liabilities to associated companies
Trade payables 0.0
Total 0.0

17. Collateral, contingent liabilities and other commitments
2005 2004

Balance Balance 
sheet sheet  

MEUR debt Collateral debt Collateral
Mortgages given as collateral for liabilities and commitments
Loans from credit institutions 0.7 1.0 1.1 1.1
Off-balance-sheet commitments 9.8
Total 0.7 1.0 1.1 10.9

Guarantees and contingent liabilities
  on behalf of Group companies 376.3 315.0

Nominal amounts of rents according to leasing contracts
Payable within one year 2.9 2.0
Payable after one year 4.7 8.4
Total 7.6 10.4

18. Inner circle loans and other commitments

There are no loans from senior management and the members of the Board of Directors.
No pledges or other commitments were given on behalf of senior management or shareholders.
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PROPOSAL OF THE BOARD

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Wärtsilä 
Corporation
We have audited the accounting records, 
the fi nancial statements and the admin-
istration of Wärtsilä Corporation for the 
fi nancial period 1 January – 31 Decem-
ber 2005. Th e Board of Directors and 
the President and CEO have prepared 
the Report of the Board of Directors and 
the consolidated fi nancial statements, 
which comprise balance sheet, income 
statement, cash fl ow statement, state-
ment of changes in shareholder’s equi-
ty and notes to the fi nancial statements, 
prepared in accordance with Interna-
tional Financial Reporting Standards as 
adopted by the EU and the parent com-
pany’s fi nancial statements, which com-
prise balance sheet, income statement, 
cash fl ow statement and notes to the fi -
nancial statements, prepared in accord-
ance with prevailing regulations in Fin-
land. Based on our audit, we express an 
opinion on the consolidated fi nancial 
statements, on the Report of Board of 
Directors as well as on the parent com-
pany’s fi nancial statements and admin-
istration.

We have conducted the audit in ac-
cordance with Finnish Standards on 
Auditing. Th ose standards require that 
we perform the audit to obtain reason-
able assurance about whether the fi nan-
cial statements are free of material mis-
statement. An audit includes examining 
on a test basis evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the fi nan-
cial statements, assessing the account-
ing principles used and signifi cant es-
timates made by the management as 
well as evaluating the overall fi nancial 
statement presentation. Th e purpose of 
our audit of administration is to exam-
ine that the members of the Board of 
Directors and the President and CEO 
of the parent company have complied 
with the rules of the Companies Act.

Consolidated fi nancial statements
In our opinion the consolidated fi nan-
cial statements prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU 
and defi ned in the Finnish Account-
ing Act, give a true and fair view of the 
group’s result of operations and of the 
fi nancial position. Th e consolidated fi -
nancial statements can be adopted.

Parent company’s fi nancial state-
ments and administration
In our opinion the parent company’s 
fi nancial statements and the Report of 
Board of Directors have been prepared 
in accordance with the Finnish Account-
ing Act and other rules and regulations 
governing the preparation of fi nancial 
statements in Finland. Th e fi nancial 
statements give a true and fair view, as 
defi ned in the Finnish Accounting Act, 
of the parent company’s result of opera-
tions and of the fi nancial position. Th e 
fi nancial statements can be adopted and 
the members of the Board of Directors 
and the President and CEO of the par-
ent company can be discharged from li-
ability for the period audited by us. Th e 
proposal by the Board of Directors re-
garding the parent company’s distribu-
tion of retained earnings is in compli-
ance with the Companies Act.

Helsinki, 13 February 2006

KPMG OY AB

Mauri Palvi
Authorized Public Accountant

On 31 December 2005 the consoli-
dated retained earnings of the Group 
amounted to EUR 625,829,000 and 
included distributable funds total-
ling EUR 553,812,000. Th e Parent 
Company’s net profi t for the fi nancial 
year amounted to EUR 7,291,138.24 
and the retained earnings to EUR 
444,607,860.48. The distributable 
funds of the Parent Company on 31 
December 2005 amounted to EUR 
451,898,998.72. Th e number of shares 
entitled to a dividend is 94,107,116. 
Th e Board of Directors proposes that 
a dividend of EUR 0.90 per share be 
paid, i.e. totally EUR 84,696,404.40, 

and in addition an extra dividend hav-
ing the value of EUR 0.60 per share, to-
talling EUR 56,464,269.60. After this 
the undistributed retained earnings 
in the Parent Company will be EUR 
310,738,324.72.

Helsinki, 6 February 2006

Antti Lagerroos Göran J. Ehrnrooth
Heikki Allonen Risto Hautamäki
Jaakko Iloniemi Bertel Langenskiöld
Matti Vuoria

Ole Johansson
President and CEO

Translation
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SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

• Private corporations 20.5% (25.0)

• Banks and insurance companies 7.7% (7.5)

• Public sector entities 8.4% (9.1)

• Non-profi t organizations 14.8% (15.8)

• Households 24.6% (26.8)

• Outside Finland or nominee registered 24.1% (15.7)

Ownership structure according to shares 31 Dec. 2005

• Private corporations  33.5% (31.3)

• Banks and insurance companies 9.0% (11.3)

• Public sector entities 7.6% (8.5)

• Non-profi t organizations 20.7% (21.3)

• Households 21.0% (22.3))

• Outside Finland or nominee registered 8.2% (5.4)

Ownership structure according to votes 31 Dec. 2005

Wärtsilä Corporation’s shares are list-
ed on the Main List of the Helsinki 
Exchanges. Th e shares are also traded 
on the SEAQ International (Stock Ex-
change Automatic Quotation system) 
on the London Stock Exchange.

Wärtsilä Corporation’s share capital 
is minimum EUR 200 million and max-
imum EUR 800 million. Within these 
limits the share capital may be raised or 
lowered without amending the Articles 
of Association. Th e company’s paid-
up and registered share capital is EUR 
329,374,906.00. Series A shares carry 
ten (10) votes and Series B shares one 
(1) vote at general shareholders’ meet-
ings. Th e nominal value of the shares is 
EUR 3.50. All shares carry equal divi-
dend rights. Th ere are 23,579,587 Se-
ries A shares and 70,527,529 Series B 
shares making 94,107,116 shares in all.

Options rights for management
Following the decision of the AGM on 
20 March 2001, a total of 1,500,000 
options were issued to key persons in 
the Wärtsilä Group, entitling them to 
subscribe for Wärtsilä B shares. Th e 
share subscription period began on 1 
April 2003 and ends on 31 March 2007. 
Any extra dividends distributed after 25 
May 2001 and before the subscription 
of shares will be deducted from the sub-
scription price. Trading in the 2001 op-
tions began on the Helsinki Stock Ex-
changes on 7 March 2005.

Th e AGM on 12 March 2002 ap-
proved a new option scheme for key 
persons in the Wärtsilä Group. Th e 
number of options is 800,000 and they 
may be exercised to subscribe for Wärt-
silä B shares. Th e subscription of shares 
began on 1 April 2004 and ends on 31 
March 2008. Any extra dividends dis-
tributed after 17 May 2002 and be-
fore the subscription of shares will be 
deducted from the subscription price. 
Trading in the 2002 options began 
on the Helsinki Exchanges on 1 April 
2004.

Th e company had no other share-
linked personnel incentive schemes in 
force during 2005.

Under the terms and conditions 
of Wärtsilä’s 2001 and 2002 option 
schemes, should the company increase 
its share capital with a bonus issue be-
fore the subscription of shares, the 
share subscription ratio shall be amend-
ed so that the ratio to the share capi-
tal of shares to be subscribed for by vir-
tue of the options remains unchanged. 
Accordingly, the bonus issue as decid-
ed by the Extraordinary General Meet-
ing on 1 December 2004, the share sub-
scription price was divided  by 1.5 and 
two (2) options shall entitle their hold-
er to subscribe for three (3) Wärtsilä B 
shares. As a consequence of the bonus 
issues and extra dividend the share sub-
scription price of 2001 options is 16.70 
euros and the share subscription price 
of 2002 options 9.50 euros.

During the subscription period 
1,556,499 shares were subscribed based 
on the 2001 and 2002 option schemes, 
which corresponds to 1.68% of the share 
capital. A total of 1,893,501 shares have 
not been subscribed, which corresponds 
to 2.05% of the share capital.  

Management holdings 
Th e members of the Board of Direc-
tors, the CEO, the CEO’s deputy and 
the corporations under their control 
own altogether 247,909 Wärtsilä Cor-
poration shares, which represent 0.3% 
of the stock and 0.3% of the voting 
rights.

Under the 2001 option scheme issue 
the CEO and his deputy hold 104,000 
options, entitling them to subscribe for 
altogether 156,000 shares, or 0.2% of 
the current total number of shares and 
0.05% of the voting rights.

Under the 2002 option scheme is-
sue the CEO and his deputy hold alto-
gether 65,000 options, entitling them 
to subscribe for at most 97,500 shares, 
or 0.1% of the current total number of 
shares and 0.03% of the voting rights.

Board’s proposals to the Annual 
General Meeting
Th e Board of Directors proposes to the 
Annual General Meeting on 15 March 
2006 that a dividend of 0.90 euros per 
share and an extra dividend of 0.60 eu-
ros per share be distributed on the fi nan-
cial year ended 31 December 2005.
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Th e Board proposes that the AGM 
authorize the Board to repurchase and 
dispose of the company’s own A and 
B shares in proportion to the number 
of shares in each series provided that 
the total nominal value of the pur-
chased shares shall not exceed ten per-
cent (10%) of the company’s total share 
capital and voting rights. Th e compa-
ny’s own shares may be purchased us-
ing only distributable funds.

 Th e shares may be purchased only 
in public trading at the prevailing price. 
Th e purchased shares may be used as 
consideration in future mergers and 
acquisitions or industrial reorganiza-
tions or for the development of the cap-

ital structure of the company or as part 
of its management incentive system. 
Th e shares may be purchased or dis-
posed of for other consideration than 
cash.

Th e Board is authorized to deter-
mine to whom and in what order the 
company’s own shares shall be disposed 
of. Th e Board may decide on the dis-
posal of the shares otherwise than in 
proportion to shareholders’ pre-emp-
tive subscription rights. Th e Board 
shall decide on the disposal price of the 
shares and on the other terms related 
to their disposal, and the shares may 
be disposed of for other consideration 
than cash. Th e authorization includes 

the right to set the principles used to 
determine the disposal price. Th e shares 
may be disposed of as consideration in 
future mergers and acquisitions or in-
dustrial reorganizations or for the de-
velopment of the capital structure of 
the company or as part of its manage-
ment incentive system.

Th is authorization is in force for 
one year from the resolution of the An-
nual General Meeting. Upon deciding 
on approval of the proposal, the An-
nual General Meeting can at the same 
time cancel a similar authorization giv-
en previously.

Change in share capital
Series A Series B Total

Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares Shares
Shares and votes 31 Dec. 2004 23,579,587  25.5 235,795,870  77.4 68,971,030 74.5 68,971,030  22.6 92,550,617 304,766,900
Bonds with options subscribed  - -  - - 1,556,499 - 1,556,499 - 1,556,499 1,556,499
Total 31 Dec. 2005 23,579,587 25.1 235,795,870 77.0 70,527,529 74.9 70,527,529  23.0 94,107,116 306,323,399

Dilution effect of the option schemes
Number of shares Share capital Votes

Series B % EUR % Price, EUR Subscription period
Share option programme (2001) 1,229,451 1.3 4,303,078 0.4 16.70 1 April 2003-31 March 20071 
Share option programme (2002) 664,050 0.7 2,324,175 0.2 9.50 1 April 2003-31 March 20081 
Total 1,893,501 2.0 6,627,253 0.6

Number of Wärtsilä shares 96,000,617 and number of votes 308,216,900, if subscription rights are exercised.
1 Subscription period annually between 2 Jan. – 30 Nov.

Share information Series A Series B 
Share codes
OMX AB
Reuters
Bloomberg

WRTAV
WRTAV.HE
WRTAV.FHl

WRTBV
WRTBV.HE
WRTBV.FH

Lot size 100 100
Votes/share 10 1
Number of shares 23,579,587 70,527,229
Taxation value in Finland 2005 EUR/share 17.16 17.45

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS
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Series A quotations 2001– 2005
EUR

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Wärtsilä A  high    low           OMX Helsinki          OMX Helsinki Machinery          OMXHCap

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

Wärtsilä B  high    low           OMX Helsinki          OMX Helsinki Machinery          OMXHCap

Series B quotations 2001– 2005
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The graphs have been adjusted for the 2004 bonus issue.
Approximately 12% of all Wärtsilä shares were traded on the SEAQ system in London during 2005.
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Major shareholders 31 December 2005

Number of shares x1,000
Series A Series B % of votes % of shares

1 Fiskars Corporation 8,651 7,165 30.58  16.81
2 Sampo Life Insurance Company Ltd. 1,984 0 6.48  2.11
3 Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company 1,385 1,173 4.91  2.72
4 Svenska litteratursällskapet i Finland r.f. 1,449 22 4.74  1.56
5 Sigrid Jusélius Foundation 558 1 1.82  0.60
6 Brita Maria Renlund Foundation 394 400 1.42  0.84
7 The Signe & Ane Gyllenberg Foundation 370 25 1.22 0.42
8 The Social Insurance Institution of Finland 284 652 1.14  1.00
9 Relander Gustaf 244 0 0.80  0.26

10 Ehrnrooth Johan Robert Göran 234 98 0.80  0.35
11 Markus Ehrnroot Foundation 230 40 0.76 0.29
12 Åbo Akademi Foundation 196 63 0.66 0.28
13 William Thurings Stiftelse 200 20 0.66 0.23
14 Livränteanstalten Hereditas 155 464 0.66 0.66
15 Jenny and Antti Wihuri Foundation 144 471 0.63 0.65
16 Samfundet Folkhälsan i Svenska Finland Rf 141 456 0.61 0.63
17 Ella and Georg Ehrnrooth Foundation 142 263 0.55 0.43
18 Mutual Insurance Company Kaleva 166 0 0.55 0.18
19 Bergsr. Dr H. C. Marcus Wallenberg Foundation 137 60 0.47 0.21
20 Technology Industries of Finland 127 58 0.44 0.20

20 largest total 17,199 11,436 59.88 30.43

 Wärtsilä has about 25,000 registered shareholders.

Division of shares 31 December 2005
Series A Series B

Number of shares
Number of 

shareholders %
Number of 

shares %
Number of 

shareholders %
Number of 

shares %
1–100 4,360 43.5 193,054 0.8 4,155  17.7 238,526 0.3
101–1,000 4,640 46.3 1,561,174  6.6 14,394 61.4 5,619,187 8.0
1,001–10,000 922  9.2 2,224,685 9.4 4,467 19.1 11,454,467  16.2
10,001–100,000 80 0.8 2,401,225 10.2 379 1.6 10,291,827 14.6
100,001–1,000,000 16 0.2 3,727,594 15.8 43 0.2 12,453,180 17.7
1,000,001– 4 0.0 13,471,855 57.1 6 0.0 30,435,110 43.2
Total 10,022 100.0 23,579,587 100.0 23,444 100.0 70,527,529 100.0

Ownership structure December 2005
Series A Series B Total

% Shareholders Shares Shareholders Shares Shareholders Shares
Private corporations 1.9 9.8 4.2 10.6 33.5 20.5
Banks and insurance companies 0.2 2.4 0.4 5.3 9.0 7.7
Public sector entities 0.1 1.8 0.3 6.5 7.6 8.4
Non-profi t organizations 3.4 5.8 3.1 8.9 20.7 14.8
Households 93.0 4.8 91.0 19.8 21.0 24.6
Outside Finland and nominee registered 1.3 0.3 1.0 23.8 8.2 24.1
Total 100.0 25.1 100.0 74.9 100.0 100.0

The adjacent tables are based on the book-entry accounts at 31 December 2005.

SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS
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The Wärtsilä share on the Helsinki Exchange
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Trading volume MEUR
Series A 72.2 41.6 21.0 24.5 39.8
Series B 1,796.6 860.0 275.9 457.7 392.6
Total 1,868.8 901.6 296.9 482.2 432.4

Number of traded 1,000
Series A 3,160 2,180 2,508 1,890 2,853
Series B 79,635 45,527 35,001 36,805 26,868
Total 82,795 47,707 37,509 38,695 29,721

Stock turnover %
Series A 13.4 9.2 10.8 8.2 13.2
Series B 112.9 66.0 52.8 55.7 43.1
Total 88.0 51.5 41.9 43.4 35.4

Average share price EUR
Series A 22.73 13.03 8.37 12.95 13.96
Series B 22.46 13.60 7.89 12.43 14.61

Trading low/high EUR
Series A low 15.31 10.17 6.67 7.21 12.02
  high 26.70 17.32 10.87 15.67 17.00
Series B low 15.68 9.97 6.13 6.97 12.17

high 27.09 17.48 10.63 15.67 17.33
Share price at the year end EUR

Series A 24.84 15.24 10.17 8.52 13.73
Series B 25.00 15.68 10.13 8.01 13.87

Year-end market capitalization MEUR 2,349 1,440.8 907.0 727.0 1,234

Key fi gures for Wärtsilä shares IFRS FAS
2005 2004 2004 2003 2002 2001

Earnings per share (EPS) EUR 1.80 1.42 1.75 -0.44 1.37 3.69
Book value of equity/share EUR 12.25 9.65 9.22 8.69 10.37 11.70
Dividend /share EUR 1.501 0.90 0.90 0.50 1.17 2.67
Dividend/earnings % 83.31 63.4 51.4 n/a 85.4 72.3
Dividend yield %

Series A 7.251 5.91 5.91 4.92 13.69 19.42
Series B 7.201 5.74 5.74 4.93 14.56 19.23

Price/earnings (P/E)
Series A 13.8 10.7 8.7 n/a 6.2 3.7
Series B 13.9 11.0 9.0 n/a 5.9 3.8

Price to book value (P/BV)
Series A 2.0 1.6 1.7 1.2 0.8 1.2
Series B 2.0 1.6 1.7 1.2 0.8 1.2

Adjusted number of shares 1.000 kpl
end of fi nancial year 94,107 91,341 91,341 89,475 89,204 89,181
on average 93,010 92,551 92,551 89,341 89,181 84,146

1 Proposal of the Board of Directorss.

The tables have been adjusted for the 2004 bonus issue. Formulas for calculating the fi nancial ratios are given on page 4.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Antti Lagerroos
Chairman of the Board of Wärtsilä 
Corporation. Born 1945, LL.Lic. Pres-
ident & CEO and Member of the 
Board of Finnlines Plc. Member of the 
Board of Wärtsilä Corporation since 
2002.
Primary working experience: 
University of Turku, Lecturer in Proc-
ess, Criminal and Public law 1971–78; 
Vaasa School of Economics, acting Pro-
fessor of Fiscal Law 1973 –79; Hollming 
Oy, President of Legal Aff airs and Fi-
nance 1979 – 81; Salora Oy, Chairman 
& CEO 1981– 84; Salora-Luxor Divi-
sion, President 1984 – 86; Nokia Corpo-
ration, Member of the Operating Board 
1984 – 86; Nokia Corporation, Member 
of Board of Directors 1986 – 90; No-
kia Mobile Phones, Executive President 
1989 – 90.
Other positions of trust: 
Ilmarinen Mutual Pension Insurance 
Company, Member of the Superviso-
ry Board; Confederation of Finnish In-
dustries EK, Member of the Board; 
Finnish Shipowners’ Association, 
Member of the Board since 1990 & 
Chairman of the Board 1991– 95 and 
2000 –2001; Schiff hypothekenbank zu 
Lübeck AG (Deutsche Bank), Member 
of Advisory Board (Germany). 

Mr Göran J. Ehrnrooth
Deputy Chairman of the Board of 
Wärtsilä Corporation. Born 1934, 
MSc (Econ.). Chairman of the Board 
of Fiskars Corporation. Member of the 
Board of Wärtsilä Corporation since 
1992.
Primary working experience: 
President  of  Fiskars  Corporation 
1969 – 83.

Mr Heikki Allonen 
Member of the Board of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration since 2004. Born 1954, MSc 
(Eng.). President & CEO of Fiskars 
Corporation.
Primary working experience: 
Lohja Corporation, Rudus, Project En-
gineer 1979 – 80; Saudi Building Ma-
terial Co., President 1980 – 82; Lohja 
Corporation, Concrete Industries, 
several management positions 
1982 – 89; Lohja Corporation, Vice 
President, Corporate Development 
1989 – 90; Wärtsilä Corporation, Sen-
ior Vice President for project to merge 
Lohja and Wärtsilä 1990 – 92; Met-
ra Corpo ration, Senior Vice President, 
Corporate Planning 1992 – 2000; SRV 
Group Plc, President 2001– 03.
Other positions of trust: 
Rautaruukki Corporation, Member of 
the Supervisory Board.

Mr Risto Hautamäki
Member of the Board of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration since 2003. Born 1945, MSc 
(Eng.). President of Metso Paper Inc.
Primary working experience: 
Valmet Corporation, managerial, 
sales and project engineering posi-
tions 1970 – 88; Valmet Paper Machin-
ery Inc., Executive Vice President and 
Chief Operating Offi  cer 1989 – 90; 
Valmet Paper 
Machinery Inc., President & CEO 
1990 – 94; Tamfelt Corporation, Presi-
dent & CEO 1995 – 2005.

Mr Jaakko Iloniemi
Member of the Board of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration since 1994. Born 1932, MSc 
(Pol. Sc.).
Primary working experience:
Finland’s Ambassador to the USA 
1977– 83; Union Bank of Finland, 
Board Member 1983 – 90; Finnish 
Business and Policy Forum EVA, Man-
aging Director 1990 – 2000.

Mr Bertel Langenskiöld
Member of the Board of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration since 2002. Born 1950, MSc 
(Eng.).  President and CEO of Metso 
Minerals, Inc.
Primary working experience: 
Tampella Power Kvaerner Pulping,
 Power Division, President 
1994 – 2000; Fiskars Corporation, 
President & CEO 2001– 03.  
Other positions of trust: 
Member of the Board of Cidron In-
ternational Oy (Outokumpu Copper 
Products Oy).

Mr Matti Vuoria
Member of the Board of Wärtsilä Cor-
poration since 2005. Born 1951, BA, 
Master of Laws. President & CEO 
of Varma Mutual Pension Insurance 
Company.
Primary working experience: 
Secretary General, Ministry of Trade 
and Industry 1992 – 98; Full-time 
Chairman of the Board of Directors, 
Fortum Corporation 1998 – 2003.
Other positions of trust: 
Danisco A/S, Sampo plc, Stora En-
so Oyj, Member of the Boards; Win-
wind Oy, Chairman of the Board; Th e 
Federation of Finnish Insurance Com-
panies, Member of the Board and the 
Finnish Pension Alliance 
TELA, Chairman of the Board.
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Mr Ole Johansson
President & CEO since 2000. Born 
1951, BSc (Econ.). 
Primary working experience: 
Wärtsilä Group 1975 –79 and rejoined 
in 1981; Wärtsilä Diesel Inc, Vice Pres-
ident 1984 – 86; Wärtsilä Diesel Group, 
Vice President & Controller 1986 – 94; 
Metra Corporation, Senior Vice Pres-
ident & CFO 1994 – 96; Metra Cor-
poration, Executive Vice President & 
CFO 1996 – 98; Wärtsilä NSD Corpo-
ration, President & CEO 1998 – 2000. 
Positions of trust: 
Board Vice Chairman, Outokumpu 
Oyj; Board Vice Chairman, Varma 
Mutual Pension Insurance Company; 
Board Vice Chairman, Technology In-
dustries of Finland; Board Member, 
Confederation of Finnish Industries 
EK; Board Member of Central Cham-
ber of Commerce of Finland and of the 
Finnish Section of the International 
Chamber of Commerce ICC.

Mr Raimo Lind
Executive Vice President and Depu-
ty to the President & CEO since 2005. 
Group Vice President, CFO since 
1998. Born 1953, MSc (Econ). Em-
ployed by the company 1976 – 89 and 
rejoined in 1998. 
Primary working experience: 
Wärtsilä Group, positions within con-
trol and fi nance and in development 
and internationalization 1976 – 80; 
Wärtsilä Diesel Group, Vice President 
& Controller 1980 – 84; Wärtsilä Sin-
gapore, Managing Director & Area Di-
rector 1984 – 88; Wärtsilä Service Divi-
sion, Deputy Vice President 1988 – 89; 
Scantrailer Ajoneuvoteollisuus Oy, 
President 1990 –1992; Tamrock Oy, 
CFO 1992 – 93; Tamrock Service Busi-
ness, Vice President 1994 – 96; Tam-
rock Coal Business, Vice President 
1996 – 97.
Positions of trust: 
Member of the Board, Sato-Yhtymä 
Oyj.

Mr Mikael Mäkinen
Executive Vice President since 2005. 
Group Vice President, Ship Power since 
1999. Born 1956, MSc (Eng.), Naval 
Architect. Joined the company in 1982.

Primary working experience: 
Wärtsilä Helsinki Shipyard, Project 
Engineer & Manager 1980 – 84; Wärt-
silä Helsinki Shipyard, Project Man-
ager 1984 – 87; Wärtsilä Shipbuild-
ing Group, Singapore 1987– 89; Wärt-
silä Diesel, Area Director, Marine, 
Asia 1989 – 92; Wärtsilä SACM Die-
sel, France, Vice President 1992 – 97; 
Wärtsilä NSD Singapore, Managing 
Director 1997– 98.
Positions of trust: 
Member of the Board, AB Volvo Pen-
ta; Member of the Board, Delta-Sig-
ma Oy.

Mr Pekka Ahlqvist
Group Vice President, Power Plants 
since 2001. Born 1946, MSc (Eng.), 
MBA. Joined the company in 1999. 
Primary working experience: 
Kymi-Strömberg Oy, managerial po-
sitions 1972 – 85; ABB Industry, Divi-
sion President and Executive Vice Pres-
ident 1987– 90; ABB Industry, Presi-
dent 1990 – 94; ABB Finland, Business 
Development Manager and mem-
ber of the Executive Board, 1994–95; 
ABB China, Senior Vice President, In-
dustrial and Building Systems seg-
ment 1995 – 98; ABB Th ailand, Sen-
ior Vice President, Low Voltage Prod-
ucts and Systems business in Asia-Pa-
cifi c 1998 – 99; Wärtsilä NSD Finland 
Oy, President 1999 – 2001.
Positions of trust: 
Member of the Board, Vacon Plc

Mr Tage Blomberg
Group Vice President, Serice since 
1999. Born 1949, BSc (Eng.). Joined 
the company in 1975. 
Primary working experience: 
Wärtsilä Oy, Research Engineer 
1975 – 82;  Wärtsilä Power Inc., Sales 
Manager 1982 – 84; Wärtsilä Diesel, 
Project Manager 1984 – 89; Wärtsilä 
Diesel Oy, Vice President 1989 – 96; 
Wärtsilä NSD Corporation, Marine, 
Senior Vice President 1996 – 99.

Mr Lars Hellberg
Group Vice President, Engine Division 
since 2004. Born 1959, B.Sc. (Eng.). 
Joined the company in 2004.

 

Primary working experience: 
Volvo Cars AB, Research Engine Engi-
neer and Project Director in vehicle de-
velopment programmes, Vice President, 
Industrial Operations, Vice President of 
Global Business & Volume Optimiza-
tion and General Manager in Volvo Car 
Operations BV 1979 – 2001; Saab Auto-
motive AB, Executive Director for the 
Customer Satisfaction and Quality di-
vision and a Member of the Board of 
Management 2001– 2004. 
Positions of trust: 
Member of the Board, Oy Ovako Ab.

Mr Kari Hietanen
Group Vice President, Legal  Aff airs 
and HR. Company Secretary and secre-
tary to the Board of Management since 
2003. Born 1963, LLM. Joined the 
company in 1989.
Primary working experience: 
Metra Corporation and Wärtsilä Die-
sel Group, Legal Counsel 1989 – 94; 
Wärtsilä Diesel Group, General Coun-
sel 1994 – 99; Wärtsilä Power Divisions, 
Group General Counsel 2000 – 2001; 
Wärtsilä Corporation, Vice President 
and Group General Counsel 2002.

Mr Matti Kleimola
Group Vice President, Technology and 
Environment since 2000. CTO. Prof. 
Lic.Sc (Tech.) Born 1946. Employed by 
the company 1974 – 84 and rejoined in 
2000.
Primary working experience: 
HUT Automotive laboratory, Chief En-
gineer 1971–73; Suomen Autoteol-
lisuus Oy Ab, Development Manager 
1973 – 74; Wärtsilä Oy Ab, Design Man-
ager 1974 – 76; Wärtsilä Oy Ab, R&D 
Manager 1976 – 80; Wärtsilä Diesel 
Group, R& D Director 1980 – 84; Pro-
fessor, HUT Machine Design, Head of 
of laboratory 1984 – 97; Professor, HUT 
Internal Combustion Engines, Head of 
laboratory 1997– 2000.
Positions of trust: 
Member of the Board, Finnish Acade-
mies of Technology; Chairman of the 
Finnish Society of Workshop Engi-
neers; Chief Engineer Counsellor, expert 
member, Th e Supreme Administrative 
Court of Finland; President of CIMAC 
(Th e International Council on Combus-
tion Engines).
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SHARE AND OPTION OWNERSHIP IN WÄRTSILÄ 31 DECEMBER 2005

Board of Management A share B share Option 2001 Option 2002

Ole Johansson 2,550 21,700 84,000 50,000
Change in 2005 +10,000 - -100,000

Raimo Lind 795 1.545 20,000 15,000
Change in 2005 -22,000 -25,000

Mikael Mäkinen - 40,000
Change in 2005 -42,000 -

Pekka Ahlqvist 2,250 21,000 20,000
Change in 2005 -21,000 -20,000

Tage Blomberg 2,025 - 10,000
Change in 2005 -42,000 -30,000

Lars Hellberg * 12,000 -
Change in 2005 -30,000 -

Kari Hietanen 72 12,000 15,000
Change in 2005 -30,000 -25,000

Matti Kleimola 750 750 - 30,000
Change in 2005 -42,000 -10,000

SHARE OWNERSHIP IN WÄRTSILÄ 31 DECEMBER 2005

Board of Directors A shares B shares

Antti Lagerroos, Chairman 12,777
Change in 2005 +1,134

Göran J. Ehrnrooth, Vice Chairman 4,222 8,520
Change in 2005 +851

Heikki Allonen 1,513
Change in 2005 +567

Risto Hautamäki 4,400
Change in 2005 +650

Jaakko Iloniemi 3,909
Change in 2005 +567

Bertel Langenskiöld 3,735
Change in 2005 +567

Matti Vuoria 567
Change in 2005 +567

* Granted in February 2005.

CHANGES IN WÄRTSILÄ’S 
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND 
BUSINESS MANAGEMENT BOARDS
FROM 1 APRIL 2006

Jaakko Eskola (47) MSc (Eng.) has 
been appointed Group Vice President, 
Ship Power and a member of the Board 
of Management. He joined Wärtsilä in 
1998 as Managing Director of Wärtsilä 
Development and Financial Services 
Oy. Since 1995 Jaakko Eskola has been 
responsible for global sales and market-
ing of Wärtsilä Power Plants.

Christoph Vitzthum (36) MSc 
(Econ.) has been appointed Group Vice 
President, Power Plants and a member 
of the Board of Management. Mr Vitz-
thum started with Wärtsilä as a foreign 
exchange dealer in 1995. Since 2002 he 
has been Managing Director of Wärt-
silä Propulsion, based in Havant, Great 
Britain.

* * *

Pekka Ahlqvist, currently Group Vice 
President, Power Plants retires in spring 
2006. He will continue to work for 
Wärtsilä holding responsibility for su-
pervising the Wärtsilä companies spe-
cializing in automation products and 
services and for strategic management 
of Wärtsilä’s automation activities.

Matti Kleimola, Prof. CTO, Group 
Vice President, Technology and Envi-
ronment, retires on 1 May 2006. Al-
though retired, Professor Kleimola will 
continue to act as an advisor to the 
Board of Management in matters relat-
ed to Wärtsilä’s fi eld of technology.

Executive Vice President Mikael 
Mäkinen, who currently heads the Ship 
Power business, leaves Wärtsilä to join 
another company on 1 April 2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
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ANALYST COVERAGE

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In conjunction with the publication of 
its annual and interim results Wärtsilä 
holds events for investors, analysts and 
the media. Th e company’s top manage-
ment regularly meets investors in Eu-
rope and the USA. Wärtsilä arrang-
es Capital Markets Days for analysts 
and fund managers. Th e company also 
meets investors at investor fairs and at 
local evening meetings arranged by the 
Finnish Foundation for Share Promo-
tion for example. As a general rule the 
material presented at events is also pub-
lished on the company’s website.

Alfred Berg ABN AMRO Jan Brännback +358 9 228 321 jan.brannback@alfredberg.fi 
CA Cheuvreux Patrik Sjöblom +46 8 723 5115  pjoblom@cheuvreux.com
Carnegie Investment Bank AB Miikka Kinnunen +358 9 618 711 miikka.kinnunen@carnegie.fi 
Deutsche Bank AG, Helsinki Timo Pirskanen +358 9 2525 2553 timo.pirskanen@db.com
Enskilda Securities AB, Helsinki  Kaisa Ojainmaa +358 9 6162 8726 kaisa.ojainmaa@enskilda.fi 
eQ Bank Juha Iso-Herttua +358 9 6817 8651 juha.iso-herttua@eqonline.fi 
FIM Securities Ltd Lauri Saarela +358 9 6134 6307 mauri.saarela@fi m.com
Handelsbanken Capital Markets Tom Skogman +358 10 444 2752 tom.skogman@handelsbanken.fi 
Kaupthing Bank Johan Lindh +358 9 4784 0268 johan.lindh@kaupthing.fi 
Mandatum Securities Ltd Antti Suttelin +358 10 236 4710 antti.suttelin@mandatum.fi 
Opstock Ltd Pekka Spolander +358 10 252 4351 pekka.spolander@oko.fi 

To our knowledge at least the following 
brokers and analysts follow the devel-
opment of Wärtsilä on their own initia-
tive. Th ey have followed and drawn up 

Wärtsilä observes a three-week “si-
lent period” preceding the publication 
of its results. During this time the com-
pany’s representatives do not meet in-
vestors or analysts, or comment on the 
company’s fi nancial position.

Th e releases are published in Finn-
ish, Swedish and English except those 
to the trade press, which are produced 
only in English. Th e stock exchange re-
leases and press releases are available on 
the company’s website immediately af-
ter they are published.

reports and comments and are able to 
evaluate the company as an investment 
target. Wärtsilä takes no responsibility 
for their opinions:

Investor  Relations  Manager 
Joséphine Ramsay is responsible for 
Wärtsilä’s investor and analyst rela-
tions.

Contact information:
Ms Joséphine Ramsay
Investor Relations Manager
Tel +358 10 7095 216
Mobile +358 400 784 889
Fax +358 10 7095 219
josephine.ramsay@wartsila.com



Wärtsilä Corporation

John Stenbergin ranta 2

P.O. Box 196

FI-00531 Helsinki, Finland

Tel. +358 10 709 0000

Fax +358 10 709 5700

www.wartsila.com

’05
Financial Review 

A N N U A L  R E P O R T
Mission
We provide lifecycle power solutions to 

enhance the business of our customers, 

whilst creating better technologies that 

benefi t both the customer and the 

environment.

Vision
We will be the most valued business 

partner of all our customers. 




